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Financial Highlights

BE-_T-=FZA=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012  Change

EEREEETFoL) RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$’000)
Weas Revenue 1,793,552 1,838,394 2%
BB A& A Profit before tax 121,135 201,732 -40%
RATERRAA Profit attributable to equity holders

LR of the Company 103,933 160,334 -35%
BEMRE Total assets 3,804,862 3,762,347 1%
MR pE R Shareholders’ funds 2,861,488 2,816,966 2%
BEITIRA Issued share capital 63,053 62,926 0%
MEVEEFE Net current assets 1,684,278 1,676,290 0%
BREE PER SHARE DATA
BRERBFICGENM) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 16.5 25.5 -35%
BRI ECEM) Cash dividends per share (HK cents) 8.5 12.0 -29%
EREEFEET) Net assets per share (HK$) 4.6 45 2%
FEHKLE KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
PR R E (%) Return on average shareholders’ funds (%) 3.7 58  -36%
FHEELBERBRE(%) Return on average total assets (%) 2.7 4.2 -36%

AR 3R B &

BRERBFERE

Shareholders’ Calendar

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

2013F8H26H (28 —)

PR ER BT

T2 BAPER(HERMABIEERN)

HEREREEANSEA © 2013588230 E26H
(BEHEZEH—)

REANE EIE A © 20139F9A2H E4H
(EH—zEH=)

BRE(ER)

FRERRR R ¢ BE2.5(0

IREXHH : 2013F1A16H(EH=)

KREERE B Bl

JREXEHT : 2013F9H 198 (EHm)

26 August 2013 (Monday)

Register of Shareholders
Closure of Register (both dates inclusive)
For attending AGM 23 - 26 August 2013

(Fri — Mon)
For final dividend 2 — 4 September 2013
(Mon — Wed)
Dividend (per Share)
Interim Dividend HK2.5 Cents
Paid on 16 January 2013 (Wed)
Final Dividend HK6 Cents

Payable on 19 September 2013 (Thu)
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Chairman’s Statement
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Business Review

The Group registered a minor 2% turnover decrease for the financial year
ended 31 March 2013 to HK$1,794 million (2012: HK$1,838 million).
Profit attributable to equity holders declined by 35% to HK$104 million
(2012: HK$160 million), but the decline would have been 19% without
the impacts of currency exchange difference.

During this financial year, worldwide conditions were kept continuously
under pressure from sovereign debt crises in Europe, fiscal cliff in the
U.S. and monetary tightening in China. Slight economic improvements
during the second half year in the U.S. and China were not enough to
compensate for the negative impact of the European recession on China’s
exports. Furthermore, escalating costs in China and a stubbornly-high
RMB continue to pose significant challenges ahead.

Despite general market weaknesses, the Group is continuing its
enhancements of existing product lines, improvements in product
quality and stability, and strong promotions of large-to-ultra-large-
tonnage injection moulding machines. The Group shipped its first
4,500-ton two-platen injection moulding machine in this financial year
and is expecting to ship the first 6,500-ton machine in the coming year,
which will certainly further advance the Group'’s development in ultra-
large-tonnage injection moulding machines.

In addition, the Group has also launched in this financial year the first
Chen Hsong-branded, ULTRAMASTER X-series large-tonnage two-
platen injection moulding machine manufactured under license from
Japan’s Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Plastic Technology Co., Ltd.. The
Group is optimistic regarding the future of this product line which
provides great value to medium-to-high-end customers in the areas of
efficiency, energy-saving and greenness.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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FEHREE
Chairman’s Statement

Future Prospects

Judging from latest economic statistics, the U.S. is forecasted to grow
mildly in the coming year, but will continue to show uncertainties due to
the escalating fiscal deficit and persisting high unemployment. China,
is more complicated — on the one hand, the Central Government is
expected to lend policy support to maintain a certain level of economic
growth, but on the other hand not so much as to fuel the overheated real
estate market and runaway inflation. Consequently, the Group remains
cautious regarding the coming year’s prospects in China.

In Europe, however, sovereign debt crises remain unresolved, high
unemployment and heavy debt burdens continue to hamper economies
in the Eurozone and suppress consumption. Furthermore, many China
indicators started turning south since April/May of this year, adding
to an uncertain economic outlook. Persistent inflation, appreciation
pressures of the RMB and escalating local interbank lending rates
continue to plague the domestic economy in China. To combat these
challenges, the Group is to maintain its solid style of management,
continue development of new products and new international markets,
and invest resources to maintain core competitiveness.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to give my heartfelt
thanks to all shareholders of the Chen Hsong Group, customers,
suppliers, business partners, banks for their long term support and the
loyal and industrious employees for their contribution over the years.

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis
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Business Performance

For the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Group registered
total turnover of HK$1,794 million (2012: HK$1,838 million), a slight
decline of 2% over the previous year. Profit attributable to equity holders
decreased by 35% to HK$104 million (2012: HK$160 million). Basic
earnings per share is HK16.5 cents (2012: HK25.5 cents). The profit
decline had been inflated by reduced amount of exchange gains
during this financial year, which was around HK$37 million less than
the previous year, mainly caused by the appreciation of RMB in last
year. Without this impact, profit attributable to equity holders would
have decreased by 19%. The board of directors recommend the final
dividend payout for this financial year of HK6 cents (2012: HK8 cents)
per share.

This financial year had been one of worldwide economic slowdown.
During this term, western developed economies diverged significantly,
with U.S. and Japan sluggishly recovering. The Eurozone however
remained worrisome, with substantial economic slowdowns (or even
recessions) surfacing in some important countries, which in turn
hindered worldwide economic growth.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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EHEEBZRERTH
Management'’s Discussion & Analysis

In addition to the well-known sovereign-debt crisis, Europe was also
plagued by highly uncertain market conditions, global consumption
slowdown, depressed consumer and commercial confidence, weak
financial markets as well as decreased domestic demands and political
instability in some countries due to austerity measures. As Europe’s
recession weighted down on world economic growth, escalating global
downside risks also directly affected the export-oriented China.

Data showed that economic weakness in China’s largest export markets
(including U.S., Europe Union and Japan, etc.) had been the key driver
behind China’s economic slowdown. As pressure mounted on Chinese
exporters, China economic growth dropped to the lowest level in more
than a decade, with matching declines in export growth.

Facing numerous adverse factors and substantially difficult market
conditions during this financial year, the Group however successfully
expanded effort and investments in a number of key international
markets to largely compensate for the declines in turnover in China
and Taiwan, but at the cost of 2% higher selling expenses to sales. The
Group strongly believes that strengthening sales and service networks
is a crucial requirement towards expanding global market share in the
future and will continue to invest accordingly.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Management'’s Discussion & Analysis
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Market Analysis

Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers, for the year
ended 31 March 2013 is as follows:

2013 2012
(B¥EET) (B¥EET) 25
EF i Customer Location (HK$ million) (HK$ million)  Change
PEAERES Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,169 1,211 -3%
o Taiwan 114 167 -32%
H A/ FIMNHZK Other overseas countries 511 460 +11%
1,794 1,838 2%

RPREBEI2REPRBABEREHER
ATHWHER  — T ——FhBEALEE
BBEE—NANNFEUNRRKFEKTE - =
TENFE—FEHAR  PEBEANEESHE
(GDP)1% 3 [5 /Y & {8 o A9 4 L5 e i AL R E
AR -EEE-FTEEINLINNE
B BREERE ECT-—EF=FE
AL EFRIPGERB7.4% » GDPHIR T &
BHEFERENBER o M OFEGRE =
T-_FTEFEECEARE  TEZF
REERAE AT -

BRZZF—ZFF+P - AREREERED
BESIRBREANESE - FREFHBE
H—ZY|[IBER JOEE - BIEIMARRR
FEIA - IR T B - AEAPEKETER
BHRE - MIBE T ASLENIERE
71 MEEBRTEHRE  RIE=T—=F
RS - FREGDPR T — —FF N
FRRTEELTRTRBEY - PRELER
EBWBEERBCIEIREE(PMD) IRA] J,
W—_F——F—AMHAKB  PMIE—EER
50 + i EMEHEE(RMI) TMERS0 - BERE
EEMBRK o

RIEEBERDA 2013 FRH

In 2012, Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth in China dropped to its
lowest level since 1999, hampered down by global economic weakness
and the Central Government’s clamp-down on a real estate bubble.
China GDP growth started its rapid rise in Q1 of 2009 after China’s
RMBA4 trillion stimulus package, reaching a peak of 11.9% in Q1 of
2010, and had since been gradually declining. By Q3 of 2012, quarterly
GDP growth bottomed at 7.4% year-on-year after seven consecutive
quarters of decline. At the same time, export growth also witnessed
seven consecutive months of decline, reaching the lowest level in years
in the second half of 2012.

During mid-2012 the Chinese Central Government, ever concerned
with the slowdown in the domestic economy, introduced a series of
“stabilising” measures, which included new infrastructural investments
and faster approvals for new railroad, highways and drainage projects.
These measures succeeded in stabilising domestic economic growth
and, with relaxed monetary policies (including two interest rate
reductions in 2012), reversed the seven-quarter decline of GDP growth
in Q4 of 2012. China Purchasing Managers’ Index (PMI) also reflected
this economic trend, dipping below 50 since January 2012, with
Raw Material Index (RMI) also below 50 indicating over-supply in the
manufacturing sector.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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EHEEBZRERTH
Management'’s Discussion & Analysis

The weak economy in China had a serious impact on customer
confidence which in turn suppressed capital investments. This was
especially pronounced in manufacturing sectors producing consumer
products (such as household appliances and general electronic goods)
as well as producing for export. As these sectors typically employed
small-to-medium-tonnage injection moulding machines, the Group thus
registered marked sales decline in these product lines. On the other
hand, the Group’s new “two-platen” series of large-tonnage injection
moulding machines launched several years ago continued to take in
positive market responses and delivered significant sales increases over
last year and sales growth is believed to continue. All-in-all, the Group’s
total turnover in China dropped 3% over the same period last year to
HK$1,169 million (2012: HK$1,211 million).

In Taiwan, with the Group’s major customers being exporters to the U.S.
and European markets and under severe impacts by these markets’
weaknesses, total turnover declined 32% to HK$114 million (2012:
HK$167 million). These negative impacts are expected to persist in the
near future.

During this financial year, the Group had dedicated major efforts in
developing new international markets, increasing investments in a
number of major countries (including Brazil, Turkey and Western
Europe, etc.) as well as strengthening sales and after-sales networks
in order to increase market share. On the whole, the Group’s sales to
traditional S.E. Asian countries remained flat with last year, but the
Group registered healthy sales growth in many other world regions.
Consequently, total turnover in international markets grew 11% to
HK$511 million (2012: HK$460 million).

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Management'’s Discussion & Analysis

FENTREREE Development of New Technologies and Products

7N 5% B & H X Mitsubishi Heavy Industries  During the coming year, the Group will start production of its Chen
Plastic Technology Co., Ltd. ([ = Z #8# /A  Hsong-branded ULTRAMASTER X-series of advanced large-tonnage
B ) S AENERSEULTRAMASTER X-  two-platen injection moulding machines. This new product line is built
ZY MR AR SE M - WRHREEIERE  upon designs licensed from Japan’s Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Plastic
BEo L FgELE A = EMMXEZ GBS R Technology Co., Ltd. (“Mitsubishi”) and is a marriage of advanced
W N AREBMEERENR  BRESS  Mitsubishi MMX-series technology and the Group’s scale economies in
wmmin(IRERE HFOXEE)NEFLE manufacturing. The Group expects this product line to be welcomed by
ap o high-end customers (such as automotive, export appliances etc.).

—adh

‘.H' CHEN HS50ONG

T

ULTRAMASTER X — R/ AR+ 281
ULTRAMASTER X-Series Two Platen Large-Tonnage Injection Moulding Machine

10 mrsmsmA7 2013 3% CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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EHEEBZRERTH
Management'’s Discussion & Analysis

The Group delivered the first 4,500-ton, ultra-large-tonnage two-platen
injection moulding machine to a European customer at the end of this
financial year. This machine is currently the largest injection moulding
machine manufactured in China. In the coming year, the Group will
continue to expand its investment in developing new technologies and
manufacturing capacity in ultra-large-tonnage two-platen injection
moulding machines.

8 55 R REEE) — AR AHLET LT 2 #-4500 MR

SUPERMASTER Two Platen Advanced Servo Drive Energy-Saving Injection Moulding Machine-4500 ton

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Management'’s Discussion & Analysis

Production Efficiency and Capacity

The Group is currently putting the finishing touches to the 3rd phase
capacity expansion of its flagship manufacturing base in Shenzhen
Industrial Park. This on-going expansion project includes three large,
double-deck factory buildings with necessary facilities. The project will
provide a large manufacturing platform for the Group’s large-tonnage
and ultra-large-tonnage injection moulding machines, as well as
improve scale economy.

R A E R — R T E ORI
Chen Hsong Flagship Manufacturing Base — Chen Hsong Industrial Park (Shenzhen)

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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EHEEBZRERTH
Management'’s Discussion & Analysis

Two of the buildings are expected to come on-line by Q3 of 2013, with
the remaining building scheduled for Q2 of 2014. The Group’s total
production capacity will further increase after the completion of this
expansion project.

BETZRCRDE=EAEANERE RS
3rd Phase Capacity Expansion of Chen Hsong Industrial Park (Shenzhen)

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Management'’s Discussion & Analysis
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Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Conditions

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,684
million (2012: HK$1,676 million). Cash and bank balances (including
pledged deposits) amounted to HK$867 million (2012: HK$899
million), representing a decrease of HK$32 million over last year, and
the bank borrowings were HK$232 million (2012: HK$213 million),
representing an increase of HK$19 million. The Group recorded a net
cash position of HK$635 million (2012: HK$686 million). The bank
borrowings were short term with floating interest rates for payments to
suppliers in Japanese yen and for general working capital purposes.

The gearing ratio of the Group is measured as total borrowings net of
cash and bank balances divided by total assets. The Group had a net
cash position as at 31 March 2013. As a result, no gearing ratio was
presented.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistently prudent financial
management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained with appropriate
levels of borrowings to meet the funding requirements of the Group’s
investments and operations.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2013, bank deposits of certain subsidiaries of the
Group operating in Mainland China in the amount of HK$80 million
(2012: HK$83 million) were pledged, including HK$41 million (2012:
HK$58 million) for securing certain loans granted by certain financial
institutions in Mainland China to independent third parties, HK$33
million (2012: HK$19 million) for securing bank acceptance notes,
included in the trade and bills payables, to suppliers, and HK$6 million
(2012: HK$6 million) for securing payments of construction costs of
industrial buildings in Mainland China.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



BRI

R-ZE-—=F=A=+t—H AEET 2R
REIRRERE TRREYRBE 2 EER
B2 BRARR/BELOMETL(ZT—ZF -
BEL7ET)  ExemAKEARLER

%%T/ N ©

ESRINEERER
AEBEESEENE - KEBEAIESTR
B B —RAET X EBRAR
AR Bk R AT SR O IR T - ERERE
HREEE -

RIFE-—=F=A=+—H XEENHINE
fEERBRFENEE8200E TL(ZFT——
FBM9,3008 L) - AEBNTEEET
MENERAINE R ELFHE - BB
EREA R -

FA BHERARBEXLBEGEFRESN
B FEAEZRLEFARRD AEER
PEAREAERKRE - WHEBEAARKE
KPR U EENBNERTE

RAREE

RZEBE—=F=A=+—0 K&EE#®%H

BE=EHEEMRELUBIEBENERAEK
79008 T(=ZF— =5 : BH1.06(8T) °

REEBERAA 2013 FH

EHEEBZRERTH
Management's Discussion & Analysis

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had capital commitments of HK$104
million (2012: HK$171 million) mainly in respect of the construction
of industrial buildings and the purchases of production equipment in
Mainland China which are to be funded by internal resources of the
Group.

Treasury and Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its funding.
Funds, primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, U.S. dollars, New
Taiwanese dollars and Renminbi, are normally placed with banks in
short or medium term deposits for working capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had total foreign currency borrowings
equivalent to HK$82 million (2012: HK$93 million). The Group, from
time to time, assesses the risk exposure on certain volatile foreign
currencies and manages it in appropriate manner to minimize the risk.

During the year, net foreign exchange differences dropped significantly
as compared with last year because the Renminbi did not appreciate
as it did in last year. The Group has substantial investments in the PRC
and is aware that any fluctuation of Renminbi would have an impact on
the net profits of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2013, the Group provided guarantees to financial
institutions in connection with facilities granted to third parties amounted
to HK$79 million (2012: HK$106 million).
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Human Resources

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had approximately 2,700 (2012:
2,800) full-time employees. The Group offers good remuneration and
welfare packages to its employees and maintains market-competitive
pay levels. Employees are rewarded based on individual as well as the
results performance of the Group.

The Group conducted regular programmes, including comprehensive
educational and professional training, and social counselling activities,
to its employees to enhance staff quality, standards of professional
knowledge and teamwork spirit.

Future Prospects

Looking ahead into the coming year, significant challenges loom over
the economies of developed western countries (especially Europe).
Without the possibility of further large-scale financial stimulus packages,
European countries face a herculean task ahead to kick-start economic
recovery under continued austerity measures. In the meantime, the
U.S. faces a troublesome “fiscal cliff”. All these factors contribute to
uncertainties in the coming year.

In China, even though economic growth rebounded during the end of
this financial year, excessive lending and inflation continue to be the
two largest worries. The Central Government, facing a weak economy
and inflation pressure, and concerned with escalating residential
property prices, overheated investments and structural risks in the
financial system, has little room to maneuver. It is anticipated that
Central monetary policy will continue to be tightened in the coming year,
leading to a slowdown of credit growth and diminished hopes of further
reductions in interest rate or bank reserve ratio.

In a nutshell, the Group’s strategy towards expanding market share
amidst cloudy global economic prospects is to increase investments
in developing international markets. In China, the Group will strive to
achieve respectable results through its two-platen injection moulding
machines and enhanced versions of existing production lines.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Executive Directors

Chen CHIANG GBM, OBE, DEng, DSc, DSSc, DBA, FHKIE,

aged 89

Chairman

Dr. Chiang was appointed a Director of the Company in 1991. He is
the Chairman of the Group and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Dr. Chiang founded the Group
and The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation. He was appointed
Hong Kong Affairs Advisor and a member of the Advisory Committee of
College of Management, National Chung Cheng University. Dr. Chiang is
also the Economy Advisor of Shandong Provincial People’s Government
and the Honorary President of The Research Centre for Market-
Economy of Peking University. In addition, Dr. Chiang is the Honorary
Chairman of the Hong Kong Federation of Innovative Technologies
and Manufacturing Industries Limited and the Hong Kong Electrical
Appliance Industries Association. Dr. Chiang founded Chiang Chen
Industrial Institute situated at his hometown of Heze City of Shandong
Province in 1999. He is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and Mr. Chi
Kin CHIANG.

Lai Yuen CHIANG BA, JR, aged 47

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2000. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and is responsible for the management and business
development of the Group. Ms. Chiang holds directorships in various
subsidiaries of the Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong
Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. She
holds a bachelor degree of Arts from Wellesley College, U.S.A. and has
extensive experience in production management, sales and marketing.
Ms. Chiang is an Independent Non-executive Director of Hang Seng
Bank Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited).
She is also a standing committee member of the Shenzhen Committee
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Vice-Chairman
of the Federation of Shenzhen Industries and Vice-President of China
Shenzhen Machinery Association. Ms. Chiang is also the Vice-President
of The Toys Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and a member
of the Standing Committee on Directorate Salaries and Conditions of
Service of The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. She is a member of the Court of The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology with effect from 1 August 2012. Ms. Chiang
was awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 2004. She is Dr. Chen CHIANG’s
daughter and the sister of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG.
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Chi Kin CHIANG BSc, aged 46

Mr. Chiang joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He was also appointed President — Group
Manufacturing with effect from 1 May 2009 responsible for the
manufacturing function of the Group. Mr. Chiang holds directorships
in certain subsidiaries of the Company and is a Director of Chen Hsong
Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Chiang holds a bachelor degree of Applied Science in Industrial Design
from Rochester Institute of Technology, New York. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chiang had six years’ experience in industrial design,
working for a multinational company in the U.S.A.. Mr. Chiang is the
Vice Chairman of China Plastics Machinery Industry Association and
Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors. He is Dr. Chen CHIANG's
son and the brother of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG.

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG VBA, BSc, aged 46

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2003. He also holds the position of Group Chief
Officer — Strategy, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Chung holds directorships
in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chung holds a bachelor
degree of Science in Electrical Engineering & Computer Science from
the University of California, Berkeley. He also holds an MBA degree
in Finance from Columbia University, New York City, U.S.A.. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chung had more than 14 years’ experience in
sales and marketing, management consultancy, financial analysis and
information technology.

Sam Hon Wah NG BSc Econ, MBA, MAF, DBA, ACA, FCPA,

aged 53

Mr. Ng joined the Group in 2002 and was appointed a Director of the
Company in 2003. Mr. Ng holds directorships in certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng was engaged in
financial management with several multinational companies. He
has extensive cross-border financial management, mergers and
acquisitions, and corporate development experience. Mr. Ng is
responsible for managing special projects and corporate governance
of the Group. He holds an honour degree in Economics at the London
School of Economics (University of London), a master degree of Applied
Finance at the Macquarie University (Australia), an MBA degree from
The City University Business School (England) and a Doctor of Business
Administration degree from the University of Newcastle (Australia). Mr.
Ng is a Chartered Accountant, an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN BA, BSSc, aged 52

Mr. Tan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. He is
currently the Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Raimon Land
Public Company Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand), a
Director of IB Partners Pte Limited and an Independent Non-executive
Director of Triyards Holdings Limited (listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited). Mr. Tan has over 20 years experience in
investment banking based out of New York, Hong Kong and Singapore.
He had held various roles with leading financial institutions including JP
Morgan, UBS Warburg, Macquarie and BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore)
Limited where he was the Chief Executive Officer and regional head for
their South East Asia corporate finance business. He has advised major
corporations and government authorities across the region. During
the period from 9 September 2005 to 7 November 2006, Mr. Tan was
an independent director of Pacific Internet Limited, a company listed
on the NASDAQ Stock Market. Mr. Tan graduated from the National
University of Singapore and was a recipient of the Lim Tay Boh gold
medal and NUS Economics Society Book Prize.

Anish LALVANI BSc, MBA, FHKIoD,

aged 47

Mr. Lalvani was appointed a Director of the Company in 2002. He is
the Chairman of Euro Suisse International Limited which has business
interests in Hong Kong, Europe, the Former Soviet Union, Africa and
the Middle East. He has lived and worked in the U.K., U.S.A., India and
Hong Kong and holds an MBA degree from the University of San Diego.
Mr. Lalvani has extensive marketing experience in the emerging markets
and an in-depth knowledge of electrical appliances manufacturers in
China — many of whom have in house moulding facilities. He is the
former Chairman for both the North Asia Region and the Hong Kong
Chapter of the Young Presidents’ Organization. Mr. Lalvani is a member
of the Hong Kong Friends’ Committee of Asian Cultural Council, a
Director of Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong Limited,
a Director of the Chief Executives Organization and a Fellow of Hong
Kong Institute of Directors.
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Bernard Charnwut CHAN GBS, JP, aged 48

Mr. Chan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2004. He is a
graduate of Pomona College in California, U.S.A.. He has been elected
a Deputy to the National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic
of China since January 2008. He is member of Executive Council and
a former member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Chan is the Chairman of each of the Council
for Sustainable Development, the Advisory Committee on Revitalisation
of Historic Buildings, the Council of Lingnan University and Hong Kong-
Thailand Business Council. In addition, he serves as the Chairperson
of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service and the Vice Chairman
of the Oxfam Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is currently an Executive Director
and the President of both Asia Financial Holdings Ltd. (listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) and
Asia Insurance Company, Limited and an advisor to Bangkok Bank
Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch. He is a Non-executive
Director of City e-Solutions Limited and New Heritage Holdings Ltd.,
an Independent Non-executive Director of each of China Resources
Enterprise, Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited, all of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan since April 2007 has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of Wing Lung Bank Limited, which
was delisted from the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2009. He retired
as an Independent Non-executive Director of Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange) on 3 May 2011.

Michael Tze Hau LEE BA, MBA, aged 52

Mr. Lee was appointed a Director of the Company in 2008. He is the
Managing Director of MAP Capital Limited, an investment management
company. Mr. Lee started his career in the investment industry in 1987
and has since held senior management positions in multinational
investment companies including Indosuez Asia Investment Services
Limited and Lloyd George Management. He also co-founded Asia
Strategic Investment Management Limited in 1995. He was educated
in the U.S.A. and holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Bowdoin
College and a Master of Business Administration Degree from Boston
University. Mr. Lee was a member of each of the Main Board and
Growth Enterprise Market Listing Committees of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and an Independent Non-
executive Director of Tai Ping Carpets International Limited (listed on
the Stock Exchange) between August 1998 and June 2010. He is a
Non-executive Director of Hysan Development Company Limited, an
Independent Non-executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and Trinity Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange; and a Steward of The Hong Kong Jockey Club.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance practices in safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is committed
to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate governance
practices.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for the following
deviations:

Code provision A.4.2 provides that every director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The directors
of the Company (except the Chairman of the Company) are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years as the Chen
Hsong Holdings Limited Company Act, 1991 of Bermuda provides that
the chairman and managing director of the Company are not required
to retire by rotation.

Code provision A.6.7 requires that the independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings of the Company. Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN and Mr. Anish
LALVANI, the independent non-executive directors of the Company,
were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 27 August 2012 due to other commitments.

Code provision C.1.2 requires that the management should provide all
members of the board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules. The management has complied with this code provision
starting from the third quarter of the financial year.
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Board of Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of five executive directors
and four independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Note :
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman) is the father of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief
Executive Officer) and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG (Executive Director).

The biographical details of all directors are set out on pages 17 to 20
of this annual report. Each director brings a wide range and years of
business and/or professional experience to the Board. Their combined
experience, knowledge and expertise are valuable in overseeing the
Group’s business.

A list of directors of the Company and their role and function is posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s
vision, strategic direction, general policies and strategic business
plans; to monitor and control the operating and financial performance
of the Group; to implement the best corporate governance practices
throughout the Group; and to set appropriate policies to assess and
manage risks in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Group.
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Delegation to Management

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to the
Management comprising all executive directors, management staff, and
operating heads of different business units. The main responsibilities of
the Management are to implement the strategies and business plans
set by the Board and to manage the Group'’s business operations in
accordance with the policies and directives of the Board.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board held four regular meetings throughout the year at
approximately quarterly intervals to review the overall strategies and
the operating and financial performance of the Group. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda for Board meetings
in consultation with all directors. Notice of at least 14 days is given to
all directors for all regular Board meetings, and all directors are given
opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. Draft
minutes of Board meetings are circulated to all directors for comments.
Minutes of Board meetings with details of matters considered by the
Board and decision reached are kept by the Company Secretary and
open for inspection by the directors.
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REBEE-_Z—=F=-A=+—81t28 During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, four regular Board
BEERN ARRIRBITUAREERTE meetings and one general meeting were held and the attendance record
ek —ARERE BUESZH of each director is as follows:

[EREERESIET

EXREBLEAE FEAY | REASHERE E2RH

= Number of Board Number of General
Name of Director Meetings Attended / Held Meetings Attended / Held
HITEE

Executive Directors

EEEt(EE) 3/4 1/1
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman)

BB (TTHABE) 4/4 11

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
(Chief Executive Officer)

BEREE 4/4 171
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG

BRI 4/4 1/1
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

RIEESLSE 4/4 71
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG
BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

PR S 4/4 0/1
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Anish LALVANISE 4 4/4 0/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI

PRE B LA 4/4 11
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

FFELE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
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The agenda and accompanying board papers for regular Board
meetings are sent out in full package to all directors at least three days
before the date of a Board meeting. All directors have access to board
papers and related materials and may, in appropriate circumstances,
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who ensures that board procedures and applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on directors’
and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The Company
reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Chen CHIANG is the Chairman of the Board and Ms. Lai Yuen
CHIANG is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are defined clearly to ensure
their accountability and responsibility with respect to the management
of the Company.

The Chairman focuses on overall corporate development and high-level
strategic directions of the Group, provides leadership to the Board, and
oversees the efficient functioning of the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the business
of the Group, policy making and corporate management and the
implementation of strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board with
the support from the Management.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each independent non-executive director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of not more
than three years and in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company
is subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee reviewed and
assessed the individual independent non-executive director’'s annual
confirmation of independence and considered all independent non-
executive directors remained independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules. The independent non-executive director is required to
inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his independence.

The independent non-executive directors will take lead in considering
matters which a substantial shareholder or a director has conflict of
interest. Board committee comprising independent non-executive
directors will be formed to advise the independent shareholders on
connected transaction to be approved by the independent shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company.

The Board is grateful for the contribution and independent advice and
guidance that the independent non-executive directors have been
giving to the Board and the Board committees.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development

On appointment to the Board, each director receives a comprehensive
induction package covering the Company’s constitutional documents,
the policy and procedures of the Company as well as the general,
statutory and regulatory obligations of being a director to ensure that
he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and other relevant requirements.

The directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and other regulatory
regime. To keep abreast of the responsibilities of the directors and
infuse them with new knowledge, a “Guide for Directors” comprising
the latest developments in the legislations and materials relevant to the
roles, functions and duties as a director has been provided to each
director during the financial year ended 31 March 2013.
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PIEESRATRAARBRERMMME
TTREAIER - RIEBEFMREENER - R

The directors are required to provide the Company with details of the
training undertaken by them from time to time. Based on the details so

HE_T—=F=A=+—HILWHBF
ER - FrAESETREIBIRIT

provided, the training undertaken by the directors during the financial

year ended 31 March 2013 is summarized as follows:

SHEBREYK &3
B EZRREEER
Z&%HH HEEBERREE
Reading Materials / | B2 E FwE
Journals Relevant to Attending Seminars,
Z287YIBE | the Business, Directors’ Conferences Relevant
EEHA Shenzhen Duties, Regulatory & to Regulatory &
Name of Director Factory Visit Corporate Governance Corporate Governance
BITES
Executive Directors
BEELT(EE) X v/ v
Dr. Chen CHIANG (Chairman)
BRI T (TTBAES) v v v
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
(Chief Executive Officer)
BEREE v v v
Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG
EHRREE v v v/
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
RIEERA v/ v/ v
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG
BIEHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BREE S Se 4 v v v
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Anish LALVANIZE 4 v v v
Mr. Anish LALVANI
PR Bk X v v
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
MFEXRE v v/ v
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

REEBEERAR 2013 FH
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Confirmations have been received from the directors that they are
able to devote sufficient time as and when required to discharge their
responsibility as a director of the Company. Besides, the directors have
disclosed to the Company their interest as director and other offices in
public companies or organizations and other significant commitments
in a timely manner and have updated the Company on any subsequent
changes.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by the Directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Code of Conduct
has been updated to reflect the recent amendments to the Listing Rules
which took effect in 2013. The Company, after having made specific
enquiry of all directors, confirms that all directors have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Code of Conduct and the Model
Code throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2013.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1998. As at the date of this
report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN,
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE. Mr. Anish
LALVANI is the Committee Chairman.

The roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that the Company has
formal and transparent arrangements for considering matters relating
to the Group’s financial reporting and internal control and overseeing
the Company’s relationship with the Company’s external auditors. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee follow the guidelines set out
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and have
been last updated in March 2012 to comply with the new requirements
set out in the CG Code. The updated terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings (totalling four sessions) during
the financial year ended 31 March 2013 to review with the Company’s
internal and external auditors, the Group’s internal controls and financial
results and related matters. The attendance record of each member is
as follows:

e EERE
EREEERE Number of Meetings
Members of Audit Committee Attended / Held
BIEHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
Anish LALVANISE 4 2/2
Mr. Anish LALVANI
BREE K Se 4 2/2
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
ﬁ% =] /\_:\?EE 2/2
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
FFELE 2/2
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

RBE-_T—=F=A=+—HIzH#
BEEARN BB EDET:

. BEAEERERPRIHHELE
Rt AT - 3 MR X BT 5

#
o BRIEILAZ BT - URFHHA
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o BUERIMNEIZBEDIE RS MR H
BZER
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Audit Committee
had:

e reviewed the Group’s annual and interim financial statements with
respect to their true and fairness, and discussed with the external
auditors;

e reviewed the changes in accounting standards and their impacts on
the Group’s financial statements;

e made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditors
and reviewed their audit fees;

reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems;
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e approved the 2012/2013 Internal Audit Plan;

e reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations of the
Internal Audit Department and the responses of the Management;

e reviewed the continuing connected transactions entered into by the
Group;

e reviewed, in particular, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

e reviewed the Whistleblowing Policy; and

e reviewed the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. As at the date of
this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, Mr.
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI and Mr. Michael Tze
Hau LEE, and the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director, Ms.
Lai Yuen CHIANG. Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN is the Committee
Chairman. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have
been updated in March 2012 to comply with the new requirements set
out in the CG Code and are posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration of directors and senior management. It also reviews
and determines the remuneration packages of executive directors and
senior management and to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive directors of the Group with reference
to the corporate goals and objectives. The Remuneration Committee
considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies
and duties and responsibilities of the executive directors and senior
management.
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Remuneration of executive directors comprises salary, allowances,
performance related bonus, share options and pension scheme
contributions. Information about directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 March 2013 and the Company’s share option
scheme are set out in notes 9 and 30 to the financial statements,
respectively, of this annual report.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the financial
year ended 31 March 2013. The attendance record of each member

& BB HERESSNNT is as follows:
HERE, EFRE

FMZEEKE Number of Meetings
Members of Remuneration Committee Attended / Held
BIAEHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
PRES BT 1/1
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
PR S 11
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Anish LALVANISE 4 1/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI
MFEHE 1/1
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
TBABRHTES
Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director
BB 1/1
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG

EREBARAT 2013 FR CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 31
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Remuneration
Committee had reviewed and approved matters relating to the salaries
and bonus of the executive directors (also being the senior management
of the Company) and the fee of the independent non-executive directors
after assessing their individual performance and in consultation with the
proposals of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. No individual
director took part in voting his/her own remuneration at the meeting.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012. As at
the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises four
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang
TAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN and Mr. Michael
Tze Hau LEE. Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN is the Committee Chairman.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and making recommendations on
any proposed change to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors.

The Nomination Committee will participate in the assessment and
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. Individuals,
suitably qualified are identified and nominated to the Board. The
selection criteria for Board membership include professional expertise,
high standards of relevant skills, high levels of integrity and business
ethics, and demonstrable competence as required by a director of a
listed company. A candidate to be appointed as an independent non-
executive director must meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the financial year
ended 31 March 2013. The attendance record of each member is as

& BB ZHREREENT follows:

HERE EEBRE
REZEEHKE Number of Meetings
Members of Nomination Committee Attended / Held
BIEHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
BREE ST 1/1
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Anish LALVANISE 4 1/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI
PRES BEAE 1/1
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
FMFELE 1/1
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed and discussed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, revised the checklist for assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors and approved the nomination of
the retiring directors to seek for re-election at the 2012 Annual General
Meeting.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee (the “CG Committee”) was
established in March 2012. As at the date of this report, the CG
Committee comprises four independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE, Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN, Mr. Anish
LALVANI and Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, and one executive director,
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG. Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE is the Committee
Chairman.
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The CG Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable
to the directors and employees of the Company and reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this report.

The CG Committee held two meetings during the financial year ended
31 March 2013. The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE, EFRE
TEEREEEHE Number of Meetings
Members of CG Committee Attended / Held
BYEHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
B E 212
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
PREE KA 2/2
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
Anish LALVANISE 4 2/2
Mr. Anish LALVANI
PRES TS 2/2
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
HITEE
Executive Director
RIEEES 2/2
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG

REE-_TE—=F=ZA=+—H1t28
BREEAN - tEERZESCENAEAR
BIEERETERL  EEREHES
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the CG Committee had
reviewed the corporate governance compliance status of the Company,
the compliance with the Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors
and Relevant Employees and the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management.
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External Auditors’ Remuneration

External auditors’ remuneration for the financial year ended 31 March
2013 amounted to a total of HK$2,109,000, of which HK$1,920,000 was
incurred for audit services and HK$189,000 for non-audit services.

Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 March 2013 have been audited by the external auditors,
Ernst & Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group which were prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

A statement by the external auditors about their responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2013 is set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 57 to 58 of this annual report.

Internal Controls

The Group has established internal controls in material aspects of
its business. The internal control system comprising a well-designed
organizational structure that facilitates segregation of duties,
comprehensive operational and financial controls, and effective risk
management. The management, which comprises senior staff and
operating heads of different business units, is primarily responsible for
the design, implementation, and improvement of internal controls. The

Board oversees internal governance and the management’s activities.

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system. Through the Audit Committee
and the Group’s Internal Audit Department, the Board has conducted
an annual review on the effectiveness of the internal control system
for the financial year ended 31 March 2013 which also included
the consideration on the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.
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The Audit Committee has been established by the Board to conduct
regular checking on internal governance and compliance, and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system. The Audit
Committee comprises independent non-executive directors who are
experienced in corporate management. The Audit Committee appoints
and delegates to the Group’s Internal Audit Department the major role
in monitoring the Group’s compliance with policies and standards
and reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls through frequent
auditing of the activities of different business units across the Group.
The Group’s Internal Audit Department plans its internal audit activities
annually and submits the internal audit plan to the Audit Committee
for review and approval. Regular internal audit reports are presented to
the Audit Committee and any proposed corrective actions are properly
followed up.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and have
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She is a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She reports to the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer. All directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures,
and applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening of Special General Meeting on Requisition

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) (the “Bermuda Companies Act”), shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up share capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
have the right to requisite the directors to convene a special general
meeting of the Company. The requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist and deposited at the
registered office of the Company.
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If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionist, or any
of them representing more than one-half (50%) of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a special general meeting of
the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the provisions of Bermuda Companies Act, shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights
of all the shareholders or of at least 100 shareholders in number of
the Company, may put forward any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at a general meeting of the
Company by sending the requisition together with a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than six weeks before the general meeting.

Pursuant to Bye-law 114 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, shareholder
may propose a person other than a retiring director of the Company for
election as a director of the Company at the general meeting by lodging
at the head office of the Company, a written notice of nomination with
the written consent of the nominated person of his/her willingness to
be elected, for a period of at least 7 days which shall commence no
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days before the
date of such general meeting. Procedures for shareholders to propose
a person for election as a director are posted on the website of the
Company.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with all
shareholders and is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information through publication of interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars to shareholders. To enable the
shareholders and investors have timely access to updated information
about the Group, the Company’s website (www.chenhsong.com.hk)
contains important corporate information, annual and interim reports,
as well as announcements and circulars issued by the Company.
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The Company usually conducts briefing immediately following the
announcement of interim and final results. Face-to-face meetings and
conference calls with institutional investors and investment analysts
are conducted on a regular basis to make sure that shareholders and
potential investors can obtain a good understanding of the Company’s
business. To ensure all shareholders and potential investors receive
equal access to information at the same time, inside information is
released by publication of announcements pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the annual general meeting for which at least 20 clear business days
prior notice is given. The Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive
Officer and Chairmen of the Board committees (or in their absence,
other members of the committee) are available to answer shareholders’
questions at the annual general meeting. In addition, a representative
of the Company’s external auditors is requested to attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, accounting policies
and auditor independence.

In the case of any special general meeting to approve a connected
transaction which is subject to independent shareholders’ approval,
members of the independent Board committee will also make an effort
to attend the meeting to address shareholders’ queries.

Significant issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general
meeting, including re-election of individual directors. All resolutions set
out in the notice of general meeting put to the vote of the meeting were
by way of a poll. The results of the voting by poll were published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and
will review it when necessary to ensure its effectiveness.

Shareholders and interested parties are welcome to raise enquiries
through the Company’s Corporate Communications & Investor Relations
Department. The contact details are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report.

Constitutional Documents

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the financial year ended 31 March 2013.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group's results for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 59 to 154 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK6 cents per
ordinary share to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 4 September 2013. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, the final dividend will be payable to shareholders on
or about 19 September 2013. The proposed final dividend, together
with the interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per ordinary share paid on
16 January 2013, makes a total dividend of HK8.5 cents per ordinary
share for the year.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
160 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements of the Group.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

Issued Share Capital

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Share Options

A summary of the share option scheme and details of movements in
share options of the Company during the year are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The details of
movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 63 to 64
of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 March 2013, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$203,706,000, of which HK$37,832,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.
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Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$81,000 (2012: HK$124,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than

30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

Management Contract

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existing during the year.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors

Dr.

Chen CHIANG, GBM (Chairman)

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chief Executive Officer) *

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Chi Kin CHIANG
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
Sam Hon Wah NG*

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN +*@#
Anish LALVAN] +*e#

Bernard Charnwut CHAN +*@#
Michael Tze Hau LEE +*@#

Members of the Audit Committee

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Members of the Nomination Committee

Members of the Corporate Governance Committee
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re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 17 to 20 of this annual report. The senior management of the
Group is also executive directors of the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Changes in Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the changes in the information of the
directors of the Company subsequent to the date of the 2012/13 Interim
Report of the Company are set out below:

(1) The service agreement entered into between the Company and Dr.

—E-=F=-ATN\BEA=FEH
HERAFEEH  JhREA—S RS
—HEHNEAEERA T AL -

Chen CHIANG has been changed from 3 years term to continuous
term with effect from 18 March 2013 with provision for termination
by either party by six months written notice to the other party.
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The service agreement entered into between the Company and
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG has been changed from 3 years term to
continuous term with effect from 18 March 2013 with provision for
termination by either party by six months written notice to the other
party.

Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG ceased to be a member of the Guangdong
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
with effect from January 2013. The service agreement entered into
between the Company and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG has been changed
from 3 years term to continuous term with effect from 18 March
2013 with provision for termination by either party by six months
written notice to the other party.

The service agreement entered into between the Company and
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG has been changed from 3 years
term to continuous term with effect from 27 December 2012 with
provision for termination by either party by three months written
notice to the other party.

The service agreement entered into between the Company and
Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG has been changed from 3 years term to
continuous term with effect from 18 March 2013 with provision for
termination by either party by three months written notice to the
other party.

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN has been appointed as the chief
executive officer and a director of Raimon Land Public Company
Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand) with
effect from 13 May 2013 and 1 February 2013 respectively.

Mr. Anish LALVANI has been appointed as a director of the Chief
Executives Organization with effect from November 2012.
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(8) Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN has been re-designated from Vice-
chairperson to Chairperson of The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service with effect from December 2012 and ceased to be the
Chairman of the Antiquities Advisory Board with effect from 31
December 2012.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2013, the number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 630,531,600; and the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register of the Company required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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(a) REATRRGREBRD ZHR (a) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
¥ N
ERTEER
REBER RAEE ZHAE A
2R Rz Approximate
ERME Interest in  Interest in percentage of the
EEnR Nature of ordinary  underlying st MizX Company’s issued
Name of director interest shares shares* Total  Notes ordinary shares
BE f&A 3,980,000 - 3,980,000 1) 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Personal
Hfb 398,013,620 - 398,013,620 3) 63.12%
Other
BB EA 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 1) 0.79%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Personal
BEE A 2,078,000 - 2,078,000 (1) 0.33%
Chi Kin CHIANG Personal
EYR EA 666,000 - 666,000 1) 0.11%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Personal
PR BB ¢ A 484,000 - 484,000 1) 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Personal
Anish LALVANI EA 220,000 - 220,000 1) 0.03%
Personal
* RASTET B ZRERGD 2 R AR *  The interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives represent
BN R Z BT 2 TR 2 B interests in options granted under the Company’s share option scheme
R - MZSEEEARMAREITZR of which they were unissued shares. The details of such interests are
17 - BRSNS mRMT set out in note 30 to the financial statements.
30-
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(b) RIEBCEER G 2 H R

(i)

(i)

REERERR AR BHER
B )2 B

(b) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

(i) Interestsin ordinary shares in Chen Hsong Investments Limited
(“CH Investments”):

HERRE

2 #®ITR®G

ZBHBE I

Approximate

i g percentage

EEME R of the issued

= Nature of 54 Interest in MisE shares of

Name of director interest Capacity shares Notes CH Investments

BE HAth PREEFTTZHIIA 58,220,300 (2) 100.00%
Chen CHIANG Other Founder of

AT EEREBLRE AR
B THIEREE R 2 s -

A EE R

discretionary trust

(i) Dr. Chen CHIANG, a director of the Company, is deemed
to be interested in the shares of the following associated
corporations:

LB EEE R

BRlE #TRG
2B

Approximate

percentage of the

relevant class of

issued shares of

& associated

i g

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation

Assetwise Holdings Limited IR E AR (3), (4) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

B (FBDIREBR AT 2W& (3), (4) 100.00%
Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment ERERERERN,
Company Limited 2 non-voting
deferred shares

BIEMRFEERRAG 5,000,0004% (3), (4) 100.00%

Chen Hsong Logistics Services
Company Limited

RIEEBEERAA 2013 £

mICEREER D
5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
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HAEEEE AR
HRIEBITRAE
ZEBHAE D
Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of
issued shares of

HEEEER ARGz R MiEE associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
BB R AR 50,000,0008% (3), (4) 100.00%
Chen Hsong Machinery EIRERRTERD
Company, Limited 50,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited G EE ) (3) 100.00%
1 redeemable share
MHTERAR] 2N% AR (3), (5) 100.00%
Desee Limited 2 ordinary shares
EBARAR] 20% @R (3), (5) 100.00%
Desko Limited 2 ordinary shares
BREEKEFRAR 2R% E BAR (3), (4) 100.00%
Equaltex Investment Limited 2 ordinary shares
ERREBRAT g gl (3), 4) 100.00%
Global Asia Investments Limited 1 ordinary share
BXARAT 2N% AR (3), (5) 100.00%
Goman Limited 2 ordinary shares
Gondmyne Limited 100,000 & @A (3), (4) 100.00%
100,000 ordinary shares
Granwich Limited 1i%E B (3), 4) 100.00%
1 ordinary share
BEABREEIRET R 52,570,000% & i % (3), (4) 75.10%
HERREBRAT] 52,570,000 ordinary shares
Hong Kong Cad-Cam Services
Limited
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IEHEBEE AR
BRI BITRE
ZEBHABE D
Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of
issued shares of

HEEEER ARGz R MiEE associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
Kadom Limited 2R B IR (3), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares
TEREEBRAR 1R E A (3), (6) 100.00%
KCI Investments Limited 1 ordinary share
EEFERARAA 10AE AR (3), (4) 100.00%
Keyset Development Limited 10 ordinary shares
SHEBRAT 2[R AR (3), (5) 100.00%
Koyoki Limited 2 ordinary shares
BREBREBRAR 1A E @k (3), (6) 100.00%
Maxford H.K. Investments Limited 1 ordinary share
ERBRAR] 2N% AR (3), (5) 100.00%
Mikia Limited 2 ordinary shares
REBRAT] 2N% AR (3), (5) 100.00%
Mogin Limited 2 ordinary shares
kB RAR] 2N% AR (3), (5) 100.00%
Parot Limited 2 ordinary shares
EELTBRAR 2N% AR (3), (5) 100.00%
Potachi Limited 2 ordinary shares
Pro-Team Pacific Limited I E A% (3), 4) 100.00%
1 ordinary share
MEBR QA plive=wiilile (3), (5) 100.00%

Rikon Limited

48  mEEEARAT 2013 £3F
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EEEEE AR
EHRE#ITRG
2N B
Approximate
percentage of the
relevant class of
issued shares of

HEEEEB N R MisE associated
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes corporation
HEERAF plive=iilile (3), (5) 100.00%
Semicity Limited 2 ordinary shares
P AR AR] 2R AR (3), (5) 100.00%
Sibeland Limited 2 ordinary shares
SEARAR] 2R AR (3), (5) 100.00%
Sumei Limited 2 ordinary shares
Tatiara Investment Company Limited 2R A (3), (4) 100.00%

2 ordinary shares

=EIEEABRAT IREBER (3), (4) 100.00%

Value Creation Group Limited 1 ordinary share

BiaE - Notes:

(1) ZEREDNEREEANS D (1) Such interests are held in the capacity as beneficial owner.
A o

(2) It J5Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited (2) This represents the collective interest indirectly held by Cititrust
HMERBZHESERZ M (Bahamas) Limited, trustee of The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited &% Foundation (“Charity Foundation”), which holds 100% interest in
EIZRZES((BEES 2 the issued share capital of CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO,
ZA - MEESHEEEHILE Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the aforesaid
100%E BT D HEm o RIEE discretionary trust as he is the settlor of the discretionary trust and
HFRAEEE - AREER LA may be regarded as founder of such discretionary trust.

PREEEIHERTA - HHE
18 AT AR I SRS A2
STA - T A RS
2% -
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(3) Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited #58 &= 7 ¥ B 100%#
#= * Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited Bl Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited 58 & # A ° Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited AZEZES
ZEFEAN REEFRBERK
Bl BREEETNEREES 2
MERETA  WEEHETHEE
WRIERERES ZMA - T
RIESAEZ SR -

() EEEBEBHBERE -

G ZEREZPAEHREEB
Gondmyne Limited S5 45 -

6) ZERZHEBRREE B
Assetwise Holdings Limited &%
Ao

R EXFTIREEIN R-FE—=F=H
=t—H ARAEFXHKSTHRAE
BERARARREERMBEEE(EERR
&5 M B GRGIEXVER) 2 Bt - MR
M EFTHEERER S B RDIE
352FBE RN AR RIFTRFHELMA
ZAEREEIORR - HIRBEFRETRIM
ARITHG AR B R B 2P 2 #E as SOR

AN

=

EEREROIES 2R

RER > RABEZHRHTRABRR
RYSRITERBREZFBHAR B RE
BIEE30 o
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3

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 100% interest in CH
Investments, in turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited is
wholly-owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited. Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited being the trustee of the Charity Foundation in which, by
virtue of the SFO, Dr. Chen CHIANG is deemed to be interested as
he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and may be regarded as
founder of the Charity Foundation.

Such interests are held by CH Investments.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Gondmyne Limited.

Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through
Assetwise Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any

associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Details of share options granted to or exercised by the directors or chief
executive of the Company during the year are set out in note 30 to the
financial statements.
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors, chief executive or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2013, none of the executive directors had any interest
in a business, which competes or may compete with the business of
the Group.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2013, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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RAEQNTRBZEFE Long positions in shares of the Company

LERANE|

ERITEER

a3 S=lad

ZRRBE Approximate

Number of percentage of the

BREREHE HER 51 ordinary M5  Company’s issued

Name of shareholder Capacity shares Notes ordinary shares

EIfIRE EnEBA 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
CH Investments Beneficial Owner

BE EnlEBA 3,980,000 3) 0.63%
Chen CHIANG Beneficial Owner

2REEFEZNILA 398,013,620 (1), (2), (3) 63.12%
Founder of
discretionary trust

Chiangs’ Industrial AR SIEE 2 S 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
Holdings Limited Interest of controlled
corporation

Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited ZEEA 398,013,620 (1) 63.12%
Trustee

David Michael WEBB EnEAA 7,835,000 - 1.24%
Beneficial Owner

RZESER 2 s 23,793,000 - 3.77%
Interest of controlled
corporation

IEREREER(EE)BRAR RERKE 52,268,000 (4) 8.29%
Schroder Investment Management Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited Manager

Schroders Plc RZIESER 2 s 52,268,000 (4) 8.29%
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Interest of controlled
corporation
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Notes:

(1) This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments. Cititrust
(Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant shares by
virtue of being the trustee of the Charity Foundation, the relevant shares
are held through its controlled corporation, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings
Limited which holds 100% interest in CH Investments.

(2) The relevant shares are deemed to be interested by Dr. Chen CHIANG by
virtue of the SFO as he is the settlor of the Charity Foundation and he may
be regarded as the founder of the Charity Foundation.

(3) Ms. Jwung Hwa MA, being the spouse of Dr. Chen CHIANG, in the capacity
of interest of spouse, is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares held
by Dr. Chen CHIANG by virtue of the SFO.

(4) This represents the same parcel of shares held by Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited. Schroders Plc is deemed to have
interest in the relevant shares by virtue of being the ultimate beneficial
owner of Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, no other parties were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company.

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles. These mainly
relate to contracts entered into by the Group in the ordinary course
of business, which contracts were negotiated on normal commercial
terms and on an arm’s length basis. Further details are set out in note
35 to the financial statements.

Some of these transactions also constitute “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under the Listing Rules, as identified below.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 28 March 2011, a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”) was
entered into between Zhen Jian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“CC-SZ”) and Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen) Company, Limited
(“CHM-SZ”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Pursuant to the Master Agreement, the Company and its subsidiaries
including CHM-SZ would, on a non-exclusive basis, purchase steel
from CC-SZ for a term of three years commencing on 1 April 2011.
The annual aggregate value of purchase of steel under the Master
Agreement for each of the three financial years ending 31 March 2014
shall not exceed RMB31,000,000 (equivalent to HK$36,763,000). The
transaction value during the year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to
approximately HK$7,137,000 (net of value added tax).

Dr. Chen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, who are directors of the
Company, and their respective associates (which are also associates of
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a director of the Company) together control the
exercise of 80% of the voting power at general meetings of Chen Chien
Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds the entire equity interest of
CC-SZ. Therefore, CC-SZ is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the
Master Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions during the year ended
31 March 2013 under the Master Agreement and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into (1) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Company; (2) on normal commercial terms; and (3)
in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.
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The Company has received a letter from Ernst & Young, the Company’s
auditors, to report on the above continuing connected transactions of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2013 contemplated under
the Master Agreement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference
to Practice Note 740 Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have
issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions during the year
ended 31 March 2013 disclosed above by the Group contemplated
under the Master Agreement in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules and stating that:

(1) the transactions have received the approval of the Board;

(2) the transactions have been entered into and conducted in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing the transactions;
and

(3) the annual amount of the transactions has not exceeded the cap
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28 March
2011.

Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the
sufficient amount of public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares during the year and up to the date of this report as
required under the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy, including salaries and bonuses, is in line
with the local practices where the Company and its subsidiaries operate.
Share options of the Company were granted to selected employees of
the Group under the share option scheme of the Company for attracting
and retaining high talents.
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The Remuneration Committee of the Company reviews the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for the remuneration of the directors
who are also senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 21 to 38 of this
annual report.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013
have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chen CHIANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chen
Hsong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 154, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2013, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 March 2013

(GEEFor) (HK$'000) K15+ Notes 2013 2012
g REVENUE 6 1,793,552 1,838,394
SHERAR Cost of sales (1,371,194) (1,400,911)
EF Gross profit 422,358 437,483
E YA R U 288 58 Other income and gains, net 32,687 27,163
HERDHET Selling and distribution expenses (179,982) (151,029)
THRE Administrative expenses (125,409) (135,390)
Hb&Z2WA/(ZE)FE  Other operating income/(expenses), net (26,640) 27,360
RhE AR Finance costs 8 (5,610) (4,607)
FE(EH =~ A Share of profits less losses

Sa F R ET 18 of associates 3,731 752
BRBR AR A PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 121,135 201,732
Fr{Siisz Income tax expense 11 (16,325) (41,928)
AEERF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 104,810 159,804
BER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RATERFFBA Equity holders of the Company 103,933 160,334
IR Non-controlling interests 877 (530)

104,810 159,804

RAREZFEA EARNINGS PER SHARE

BihEREF ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14

EARGEN) Basic (HK cents) 16.5 25.5
BECBM) Diluted (HK cents) 16.5 25.5

RERREMNFEZRZBE
RMIFEL3 ©

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1R

EEANURGE

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed
in note 13 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 March 2013

CEETFT) (HK$’000) 2013 2012
EEEF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 104,810 159,804
Hit 2 mEks OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEIEINETS 2 Exchange differences on translation
fEH =% of foreign operations 4,193 43,743
REEHE2E TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
&= FOR THE YEAR 109,003 203,547
BER ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RAFERFEEA Equity holders of the Company 108,057 203,365
e A T Non-controlling interests 946 182
109,003 203,547
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2013

CE#FT) (HK$'000) B1aE Notes 2013 2012
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y - RE L& Property, plant and equipment 15 960,533 914,373
FEfT T E R Prepaid land lease payments 16 42,994 44,707
GES Goodwill 17 94,931 94 931
REZE AR ZRE Investments in associates 19 28,657 24801
RIETHIREE Deferred tax assets 28 76,578 80,070
EBEME  BEK Deposits for purchases of items of

BHEA property, plant and equipment 3,853 4,885
HEIRRITIF R Pledged bank deposits 23 - 6,075
FEMBE EEET Total non-current assets 1,207,546 1,169,842
HEEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 20 842,327 897,375
FEUE 5 N BIRERFR Trade and bills receivables 21 833,561 721,349
e BRFIER Deposits, prepayments and

H fth R AR 5K other receivables 22 55,022 81,284
IR TR Pledged bank deposits 23 80,280 76,943
RE RRTTET Cash and bank balances 24 786,126 815,554
MENVE EMET Total current assets 2,597,316 2,592,505
RBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BB REEERER Trade and bills payables 25 411,363 392,561
HAbER BRI Other payables and

fERTaE accruals 26 241,069 250,513
SHRIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 231,625 213,045
FERHLIR Tax payable 28,981 60,096
mENEEEET Total current liabilities 913,038 916,215
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,684,278 1,676,290
EELERRBAR TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,891,824 2,846,132
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EEBI AR R Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZE—=F=A=+—8 As at 31 March 2013

CEETT) (HK$°000) H1zF Notes 2013 2012

FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

BERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 28 11,010 10,786

EEFE NET ASSETS 2,880,814 2,835,346

= EQUITY

EATERBFEA Equity attributable to equity holders

PEfhfER of the Company

BEITIAR Issued share capital 29 63,053 62,926

B Reserves 31 2,798,435 2,754,040
2,861,488 2,816,966

FFIERER Non-controlling interests 19,326 18,380

EREst TOTAL EQUITY 2,880,814 2,835,346

#7E Chen CHIANG #BEE%E Lai Yuen CHIANG
F/E Chairman 7TIEC 483, Chief Executive Officer
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GEEDEEHRE Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_Z—=#=A=+—HILEE Year ended 31 March 2013
2013
AAERFEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
REG) Ry EAEE ENgE FER
B BEE fife fife Ex
lssued  Share  Capitl EAEE ATRE -REE Dohnge REEA Now &5
fit share  premium redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation  Retained &5 controlling Total
(B%F1) (HK$ 000) Notes capitll account  reseve  resee  resee  resene  resene  profits  Total  interests equity
RoE-"EMA-H  AtLApi 2012 62926 507,170 20 305 147473 2% 87104 1756592 281696 18330 2835346
TERET Profit for the year - - - - - - - 103933 103933 877 104810
TEREM Other compreensive income
G for the year:
AEE Exchange differences on
£B BN translafion of foreign
EB operations - - - - - - 414 - 41A M 4198
TER Totel comprehensive income
Braka for the year - - - - - - 4124 103933 108,057 946 109,003
EE Issue of new shares % 127 2410 - - - - - -5y -5y
[REaTEE Transfer from retained profis - - - 612 - - - (612) - - -
ERiERE Transfer of share opfion
REEE reserve upon the expiry
e of share option Scheme - - - 290 - - ] - - -
HE 5-°F Final dividend
ZA=+-AL for the year ended
EEIRERE 31 March 2012 13 - - - - - - - (50341)  (50341) - (50341
nERS Interim dividend 3 - - - - - - - (1BBY (1573 - (157D
e
“A=1t-8 At 31 March 2013 63003 509,580 200 50763 MTATZ 2301 W18 179%,745° 28614688 19326 2830814
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EEDEERE Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BHE-T——F=-A=t+—ALTFE Year ended 31 March 2013
2012
ARERHFEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

REG) Ry EXEE EigRE F2R

Bx  BEE fife fife Ex

lssued  Shae  Capitl EAEE EERE -REE Bohnge REER Non- B&#5

fit share  premium  redemption  Capital  Statutory  General fluctuation  Retained 5 controlling Total

(E%F1) (HK$000) Notes capital  account  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  profits Total interests  equity
RoE-—EmA-0  AtLApi 2011 62926 507,170 9 724 144265 2% 244073 17445% 2758330 18198 2776528
REEER|/(BE)  Profilloss) for the year - - - - - - - 16033 16033 (530) 159804
TEREM Other compreensive income
G forthe year:
Ll Exchange diferences on
$BER translation of foreign
EE operations - - - - - - B0 - B0 n 8374
KEE Total comprehensive income
araka for the year - - - - - - 43031 160334 203365 18 203547
R Transfer from retained profits - - - B3 - - (35%9) - - -
HE 5% Final dividend
ZA=+-AL for the year ended
ERIRERE 31 March 2011 13 - - - - - - - (119559  (119559) - (119599
nERE Interim dividend 3 - - - - - - - (BI0) (25170 - (B
RE-CF
ZA=t-A At 31 March 2012 62926 507,170% 205 H3005* 147473 23p1F 287104 179659 2816966 18380 2835346

Y ZERBRARRSAMBIMRERANZERS

1E AAB2,798,435,0007T( =T — =4 ¢

B #E2,754,040,0007T) °
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* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,798,435,000
(2012: HK$2,754,040,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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GEHERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-ZT-=F=A=+t—HLFE Year ended 31 March 2013
CE#FT) (HK$'000) K17 Notes 2013 2012
REEKIHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B AT & Profit before tax 121,135 201,732
PR Adjustments for:
B AR Finance costs 8 5,610 4,607
JEMLERE N B FRETE  Share of profits less losses of associates (3,731) (752)
FEHA Interest income 7 (12,503) (12,619)
e Depreciation 7 66,463 58,946
TE A B 5K 8 Amortization of prepaid land lease payments 7 1,819 1,801
HEME - BREREE Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of
28R, CEF)) property, plant and equipment 7 152 (399)
M - R MR Write-off of items of
2 EHH property, plant and equipment 7 1,110 2,126
SRR B E 2R Write-back of aged liabilities 7 (5,907) (2,193)
FERE Impairment/(write-back of impairment)
OREREE] ) F58 of inventories, net 7 (22,048) 4,434
FEUE 5 R EEIRK Impairment/(write-back of impairment)
B CRIERD ) F5E of trade and bills receivables, net 7 382 (16,516)
152,482 241,167
FERD Decrease in inventories 69,117 20,297
ENE 5 R EEIRR Decrease/(increase) in trade
A, (1) and bills receivables (122,281) 60,521
Fld - T FRIAE R EAM Decrease in deposits, prepayments
FEU AR FOR and other receivables 25,625 6,694
BB REEERER Increase/(decrease) in trade
&, CR ) and bills payables 23,898 (130,664)
HAb BRI R BT Decrease in other payables
aEmd and accruals (912) (81,520)
BEEE RS Cash generated from operations 147,929 116,495
BAFLE Interest paid (5,610) (4,607)
BREAFER Hong Kong profits tax paid (17,655) (10)
R INRIE Overseas taxes refunded 1,114 108
BAEINEIA Overseas taxes paid (26,871) (70,021)
sz I AJEE  Net cash flows from operating activities 98,907 41,965
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GEHERER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-_Z—=F=fA=1+—HItFE Year ended 31 March 2013
CEETT) (HK$°000) H17E Notes 2013 2012
REERZRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EEWE  BWEKEfH Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 15 (113,508) (106,364)
HEWE - BER&E Proceeds from disposal of items of

FriS5RI8 property, plant and equipment 760 1,326
BUF B Interest received 12,503 12,619
=L na B WAR S Dividend received from an associate - 2,982
EEMZE - BB LE&E Decrease/(increase) in deposits for purchases of

FIEmA,(Ehm) items of property, plant and equipment 1,032 (649)
E SR ER Bk R AR E Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits with

A= {EH original maturity of more than

EEEFOR A,/ (38 n) three months when acquired 87,450 (121,321)
EIRRITEFOR D Decrease in pledged bank deposits 3,054 14,694
WEERB IR FE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (8,709) (196,713)
MEXBECRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BITHARFTS A Proceeds from issue of new shares 29 2,537 -
MEIRITER New bank loans 150,000 194,943
BEIRITER Repayment of bank loans (120,000) (72,106)
BERRE Dividends paid (66,072) (144,729)
MEEKZESMEFE  Net cash flows used in financing activities (33,535) (21,892)
RERRLEEY NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN

28, CRd) B4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 56,663 (176,640)
FY7IRERIREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 694,233 849,503
PE R B8 2 R H R Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 1,290 21,370
FRZEESRIBELEMEY  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 752,186 694,233
HeRBEELEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

BEZDW CASH EQUIVALENTS
e RIRITEET Cash and bank balances 24 510,496 545,084
P F R REBE R HAm A Bank deposits with original maturity of

TR=EAZEHER less than three months when acquired 24 241,690 149,149
REReREXRMINZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the

RERIBEEED consolidated statement of cash flows 752,186 694,233
AR IR R EAm A Bank deposits with original maturity of

B =18 H 2 FHFER more than three months when acquired 24 33,940 121,321

RETBIRRERAT 2 Cash and bank balances as stated in the
He MIRTTHETF consolidated statement of financial position 786,126 815,554
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B AR R & Statement of Financial Position

R-_FE—=F=A=+—H As at 31 March 2013
CEMTT) (HK$'000) B17E Notes 2013 2012
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
YE - BB KRB Property, plant and equipment 15 344 443
RBRARZIRE Investments in subsidiaries 18 734,384 731,245
IEMEN B E MG Total non-current assets 734,728 731,688
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
— B R RIBR K Due from a subsidiary 18 127,878 191,171
Al R H AU AR R Deposits and other receivables 22 780 730
RE RRTTET Cash and bank balances 24 69,590 9,540
MENVE EMEET Total current assets 198,248 201,441
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HibEMERF M ESHBE  Other payables and accruals 26 6,342 14,186
FTERITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 150,000 120,000
mENB ELAET Total current liabilities 156,342 134,186
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 41,906 67,255
EERE NET ASSETS 776,634 798,943
s EQUITY
BT Issued share capital 29 63,053 62,926
(Gt Reserves 31 713,581 736,017
A TOTAL EQUITY 776,634 798,943

# 7= Chen CHIANG #BB%E Lai Yuen CHIANG

F/E Chairman 7TIEC#4%; Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

1. ARIEHR 1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

BESEARAR /N BREEMKL
ZABRRRA]  NRAZ TRERMI
REBFTRANBAH TEPE AR

Z155% ©

FA - AEBTENFEERHETE
WEBREM -

EEZRABADBZHEEER AR AR
B2 05 55 sE i AK 37 Z Cititrust (Bahamas)
Limited « BT MK 2 BHERESR
RAR([EHIEE DRARNARZEE
2 YNCTID

2.1 RREE
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ZEWBBRRIDERELGINAE
B EEMBHREENREMBER
AP HREER - BAGIER MR
B) ZEARGRAUREBABE
2 WEERMREL - MR IIZE
SERRANERI MRS - MHEHRAEEZ
50 BRT RBIER  AESBEHNATT
(E®TIT)5%H

RIEEEARAT 2013 FH

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at 13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated in
the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH Investments”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the Company’s immediate
holding company.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

2.1 RBEEE) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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AR ILEROZMBRRAZEE(BR
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Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses resulting from
intra-group  transactions and dividends are eliminated on
consolidation.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the
non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognizes
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognized in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

222 BERKEEE 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES
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The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards — Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
amendments to HKFRS 7, the adoption of the revised HKFRSs has
had no significant financial effect on these financial statements.

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional disclosures about
financial assets that have been transferred but not derecognized to
enable users of the Group’s financial statements to understand the
relationship of those assets that have not been derecognized with their
associated liabilities. In addition, the amendments require disclosures
about the entity’s continuing involvement in derecognized assets to
enable users to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, such
involvement. Details of the transfer transactions of financial assets are
included in note 37 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2013

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12
Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Government
Loans?

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities @

Financial Instruments *

Consolidated Financial Statements 2

Joint Arrangements ?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities ¢

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12 — Transition
Guidance?

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment
Entities 3
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2013

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 36 Amendments

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

HK(FRIC) - Int 21

Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of
Items of Other Comprehensive Income !

Employee Benefits ?

Separate Financial Statements ?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures ?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities 3

Amendments to HKAS 36 /mpairment of

Assets — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 3

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine ?

Levies 3
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31 March 2013

23 WA ERERNEBUBERSE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
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REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 2012 2

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application, but is not yet in
a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a significant impact on its results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity. The joint
venture operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the other
parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the
joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realized upon
its dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers,
either in proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in
accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Company does not have unilateral
control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly, over the joint
venture;

(c) an associate, if the Company does not have unilateral or joint
control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less than
20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and is in a position to
exercise significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39,
if the Company holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the
joint venture’s registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence over, the joint
venture.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

3. FESHBEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
i — BN Associates
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An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group
has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and reserves of associates is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealized
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the associates, except where unrealized losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value either recognized in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with
the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognized for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognized in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergy of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment loss recognized for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortization) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.
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(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity

(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity;
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(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applied: (continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings in Hong Kong — Over the lease terms
Buildings outside Hong Kong - 15 to 60 years
Plant, machinery, furniture — 2to 15 years

and other equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognized is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plants under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognized initially, they are measured at
fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortization and the loss arising from impairment are
recognized in the income statement.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments
where there is no active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to
be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognized in the income statement.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income
statement.
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SHMEEREE) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
B ESRZ 1R E Assets carried at cost
MEREBIEARNIERAT(EYE & If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
MERATAREANFENERSEATE on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
mAREEIE @ BEBELESREEY because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the
BREE MGG R KRS RERAES S E loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
BEZHEEMELDSRERFTE AIRME - A and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
—EVERNE c ZSEEZREEE current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
AT HEE o losses on these assets are not reversed.
BEmRemEE Derecognition of financial assets
cREE(REREE, —HBoz—4 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
HlemEEZz 35 EHR)ET of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

SIS R H TR - 1 -

o WHGZIBEENMEBRSREZRE e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
IS fEim 3%

o AEEBEEBUIZIEEEMSRS e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from

ME N EE - AR ERFix] the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
ZH o B EReREEREERE flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
EEZIBEBRAT 28N TE=E through” arrangement; and either (i) the Group has transferred
ROAEBEEZEZBEEZEAN substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Group
2o Bl b K B HR sk A E I has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
mE R R ZIBEERAI DA rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
B RO - (B EEZIBEE L
HlHE -
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(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
Costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, other
payables, accruals and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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3. FESTHBERBERE) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
SEMAEE) Financial liabilities (continued)
#EHE Subsequent measurement
SRBEZREFERBESEET The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
ZESRBEIOBELT classification as follows:
B REH Loans and borrowings
RUEHERE - stEERNEREE A After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
B ARSI SRR A HE - T E subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest
ZEEWTERERIN - PRI R TE rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
LARKASFIER o which case they are stated at cost.
IR B EREEFEZA IR BRI RET Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the
HINE R HIBRNTWERRAER - liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate
amortization process.

BIH 12 BB ET AURHE 2 (E a4 sk Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
HERE  WEEBERFETRS premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
230 2 BRSKA - EEEFIREED the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization is
WEERAFER © included in the income statement.
BERAemas Derecognition of financial liabilities
VB E s BEEE HBR B M A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
FIEHFER - liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
ERAERMAEAR—ERANERT When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
EHEF B EEAE - SIRAREZIK same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
TEENEHNE - BRI ISEHEH liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
REREERREEERER —IBENE is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
& MAEMKREEZEIRNKERRN of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
TERANER o amounts is recognized in the income statement.
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(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realizable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and bank

balances comprise cash on hand, bank balances and bank deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Provisions

A provisionis recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on certain
products are recognized based on sales volume and past experience
of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognized outside the income statement is recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e whenthe deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been rendered;

(c) interestincome, on an accrual basis using the effective interest rate
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
has been established.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated

at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognized in the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or income
statement is also recognized in other comprehensive income or income
statement, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognized in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Employee benefits
(a) Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group operated
a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “DCRB
Scheme”) for those employees who were eligible and had elected
to participate in the DCRB Scheme. The DCRB Scheme operates
in a similar way to the MPF Scheme, except that when an
employee leaves the Group prior to his/her interest in the DCRB
Scheme vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group would be reduced by the relevant amount of the forfeited
employer contributions.
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3. FEETHERBERE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

BERA(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(@) EkeitE(#&)

(a) Pension schemes (continued)
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The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
required to participate in a central pension scheme (the “Central
Scheme”) which is operated by the local municipal government.
The contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the Central
Scheme, which are based on a certain percentage of the salaries
of their employees, are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Central
Scheme.

As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law, the Group’s
subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined benefits pension
scheme (the “Old Scheme”) and make monthly contributions to
the retirement fund to meet employees’ retirement and termination
benefits entitlements. The fund is administered by the Employees’
Retirement Fund Committee (the “Committee”) and is deposited
under the Committee’'s name with a government approved

LZEg AR FA—BKEATIE financial institution, which acts as the trustee. The expected costs
EEEEAZTREE - BiZEST of providing pensions under the Old Scheme are charged to the
ZIFTIRMER RS TERTNA - &1 income statement over the periods during which the employees
BEREEBRE TEEE S EMN provide the related services to the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan.
JB A ElH B A I aR R R H0RR o

N-_EERE  §EHES] TH In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related pension
BRRRSETE - N TRREK scheme by adding a new contributory pension scheme (the “New
Bl T A ERERRSET Scheme”) in the Labour Pension Act, which became effective on 1
2I([#:t2)) WR—ZEERF+ July 2005. According to the amended retirement regulations, the
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employees could choose to either select the New Scheme or to
stay with the Old Scheme whatever they want. The obligation of the
Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan to those employees selecting the
New Scheme is to contribute the required portion of the monthly
compensation, to the government designated account since the
election, while the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan are still liable
under the Old Scheme for the portion pertaining to the service
years prior to 1 July 2005.
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EEEAE) Employee benefits (continued)

(b) ERRIENZNKZS

(b) Share-based payment transactions
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The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognized as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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3. TESHERBERE)
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Employee benefits (continued)

(b) ERBENZ IR Z(E) (b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)
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Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognized for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognized for the award is recognized immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
(b) Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for withholding
taxes arising from the distributions of dividends from certain
subsidiaries according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is subject
to judgement on the timing of the payment of the dividend. The
Group considered that if the profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future, then no withholding taxes should be provided.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described as
below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
March 2013 was HK$94,931,000 (2012: HK$94,931,000). More
details of the impairment assessment are given in note 17.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
(b) Estimation regarding impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing analysis
on a periodic basis for those aged inventories. This involves
comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory items
with the respective fair value less costs to sell. The purpose is
to ascertain whether impairment is required to be made in the
financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In
addition, physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodic basis in order to determine whether impairment needs
to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective inventories
identified.

(c) Estimation regarding impairment of trade and bills receivables

In determining whether impairment of trade and bills receivables
is required, the Group takes into consideration the ageing status
and the likelihood of collection. Following the identification
of objective evidence for potential impairment of debts, the
responsible personnel will discuss with the relevant customers and
report to management on the recoverability. Individual impairment
allowance is only made for those impaired receivables that are
unlikely to be collected.
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5. BEHTER 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
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The Group is principally involved in the manufacture and sale of plastic
injection moulding machines and related products. For management
purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on the
geographical location of customers and has three reportable operating
segments as follows:

(i)  Mainland China and Hong Kong;

(i) Taiwan; and

(iii) Other overseas countries.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax.

Segment assets exclude investments in associates, deferred tax assets
and cash and bank balances except pledged bank deposits. Segment
liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities.

There are no significant sales between the reportable operating
segments.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2013

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets, liabilities
and expenditure information for the Group’s operating segments for the
years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

#} e
REMPEFH
2 E U R
Segment revenue DEBHEE

from external customers Segment results
AEH Group
CEBTT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012 2013 2012
AR KB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,168,288 1,210,983 87,346 180,694
= Taiwan 114,237 167,514 12,513 14,208
EM/gNER Other overseas countries 511,027 459,897 43,927 42 490

1,793,552 1,838,394 143,786 237,392
rEDIEER Reconciliation of results of

RRBE AT SRR operating segments to
FENT - profit before tax is as follows:

LEDEFEE Operating segment results 143,786 237,392
KD WA R = Unallocated income and gains 12,503 12,619
TERRES T Corporate and unallocated expenses (33,275) (44,424)
BERA Finance costs (5,610) (4,607)
JE(EREE A RERREE  Share of profits less losses of associates 3,731 752
B Al A Profit before tax 121,135 201,732

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1R
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5. RESBPER(E) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEPEE a1 g=N
Segment assets Segment liabilities

rEH Group
CEEFT) (HK$°000) 2013 2012 2013 2012
AR B Mainland China and Hong Kong 2,527,564 2,473,322 425,053 424,030
=3 Taiwan 111,125 137,681 41,543 58,483
EFINEIR Other overseas countries 274,812 230,919 185,836 160,561
2,913,501 2,841,922 652,432 643,074
REZNRIZIRE Investments in associates 28,657 24,801 - -
REDEE Unallocated assets 862,704 895,624 - -
KD BE Unallocated liabilities - - 271,616 283,927
3,804,862 3,762,347 924,048 927,001

At A HER
Other segment information
BRUEENR/ (E8)6
HEFR
EREH EERETH/ (W) Impairment losses BREX
Depreciation and Other non-cash charged/(reversed) in the Capital
amortization expenses/(income) income statement expenditure
15H Group

(B%FT) (HK$ 000) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
REAERER Mainland China and Hong Kong 65304 57494 (4574) (461)  (18447)  (1183) 112709 105182
8 Taiwan 976 1,203 1 6 (62) 522 302 290
ESoER Other overseas counries 2,002 2050 (72) 1) (6,157 (768) 497 892
68,282 60,747 (4,645) (406)  (21,666)  (12082) 113508 106,364
104 mrsmsmAE 2013 £3F CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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—E-=F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2013
5. R&EFBER(E) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
FREBEE
Non-current assets
TEH Group
CEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
oK b BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 999,645 958,798
=y Taiwan 102,666 106,173
1,102,311 1,064,971

Lt ZIERBEEE R TR EETEM The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of
RINGRREEE AR 28 E MIREFTEE the assets and excludes investments in associates and deferred tax
EitE - assets.

6. Wz 6. REVENUE
Wk (TRAARER 2 EERE)IEFNHE Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net invoiced
ERERE O RERERESHM M value of goods sold during the year, after allowances for returns and
TRRFEERTIREZRZS - trade discounts, excluding intra-group transactions.
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7. BRBUAER 7.

AREZBRBAEN SR GEA)T

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

5| %18
CEEFT) (HK$'000) B17E Notes 2013 2012
EHFEERA Cost of inventories sold 1,371,194 1,400,911
e Depreciation 15 66,463 58,946
T bR & T2 B Amortization of prepaid land lease payments 16 1,819 1,801
HEWE - BE K& Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of

2B CaF)) property, plant and equipment* 152 (399)
M - BE KR Write-off of items of

ZEFEE* property, plant and equipment* 15 1,110 2,126
A I b MR FALE Minimum lease payments under operating

HETZ&ERETH leases of leasehold land and buildings 5,597 5,327
MR RFABEER Research and development costs*** 37,929 35,180
ZEET N & Auditors’ remuneration 1,920 1,920
BT RN (EEMe Employee benefit expenses (excluding

BroN—H17E9) directors’ emoluments — note 9):

T & K3 Wages and salaries 220,088 216,248

RIRSETEIMHR Pension scheme contributions 19,893 14,911
U E 5 R EEIRN Impairment/(write-back of impairment)

SBAE O ERS[E ) FEa** of trade and bills receivables, net*** 21 382 (16,516)
GFERE Impairment/(write-back of impairment)

CRERE ) F5E~* of inventories, net** (22,048) 4434
P 2= B R Foreign exchange differences, net*** (16,583) (53,132)
FBIA Interest income* (12,503) (12,619)
SES =l wa o Write-back of aged liabilities* (5,907) (2,193)

¥ ZERECDEENGERERZIEM
WA RNz 558 A -

> ZBABEERERGFalERZIHERK
IR

o ZERBCDBEENGRERERZIEM
BN (ST FRIA -

106 mwzmsRAT 2013 FiF

*

These items are included in “Other income and gains, net” on the face of
the consolidated income statement.

* %

This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
income statement.

*** These items are included in “Other operating income/(expenses), net” on
the face of the consolidated income statement.
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8. BMERA 8. FINANCE COSTS
NEE Group
(BMFor) (HK$000) 2013 2012
RAFREEEEL Interest on bank loans

IRITERFIB wholly repayable within five years 5,610 4,607

9. ESM= 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

KREBBAERXSMAER DA (B
A DRES E TR RIREB R RERIS
16116 - FRE=MESWENT ¢

Directors’ emoluments for the year disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

REE Group
(BB FT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
e Fees:
WITEE Executive directors - -
BN IEHITES Independent non-executive directors 880 706
HEMe : Other emoluments:
N - SRR R E YRS Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 11,106 11,076
FRIREMATELL Performance related bonuses 891 8,118
RN R B Pension scheme contributions 60 48
12,937 19,948

BEFE  ETEFEUREURBTAS
8 AR R AN R R R AT IR T
Pt - FHABEREIRNM B RER 2T
0 ZEBRENRTFEREERE
WaRP R HAFEREH B
& o

RIEEEBMRLF 2013 F)R

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which had been recognized
in the income statement over the vesting period, was determined as at
the date of grant.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

T year were as follows:

rEH Group

(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012

PREE e Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 215 155

Anish LALVANI4: 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 230 198

PRES B AE Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 215 183

RFELE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE 220 170
880 706

FA - WEEABE S FIBIIF
HTER( T ——F 8\)-
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There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-

executive directors during the year (2012: Nil).
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9. EEMe(E) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) BITES (b) Executive directors
2013
a8
BHR
ENAz E30) Bire
Salaries,  HMATEAL  FEMEX
allowances Performance Pension MWeast
#£  and benefits related scheme Total
(EEFT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses contributions emoluments
BEET Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4,089 337 - 4,426
BERTT Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2481 206 15 2,702
BE2ak Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,869 126 15 2,010
BURLE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,533 128 15 1,676
REELAE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,134 94 15 1,243
- 11,106 891 60 12,057
2012
58
EER
ENFE E3) Bire
Salaries, #Hifta HEEE
allowances Performance Pension Wedst
#£  and benefits related scheme Total
(EEFIT) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses contributions emoluments
BEBL Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4064 2,850 - 6914
EBhaT Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,481 2720 12 5213
LS e Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,864 1,384 12 3,260
EWR%E Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,533 756 12 2,301
REERE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,134 408 12 1,554
- 11,076 8118 48 19,242
EHEEERAR 2013 FR CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 1 (09
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

The emoluments of the executive directors fell within the following

bands:
EEAH
Number of directors
(EH) (HK$) 2013 2012
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1 -
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1 1
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 -
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 - 1
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 1 -
5,000,001 - 5,500,000 - 1
6,500,001 - 7,000,000 - 1
5 5

ERN—ZTN\FE  2HSHEW
FE SWTEFARREERER
¥ BEELIREBELLREER
¥B30% - BEREL - EBHRE
AR REE SR AR EN20% -
2HH-_TENFT-_A—-BEL
M BEARBEEBHEINTE
ERREENEEA/L - AREK
REBEFEFENSREWHESR -
MAEE 2 ZBNBNRT - PTE
HITESER B R G RN F B R
EHR10% YR —T—FTF=A
—HEEN - ERTEERREE
B STESZEAFHMERES
BRARRTS ik P 2 R B 7K

EEEEABRAT 2013 iR

Due to the adverse effects of the global financial tsunami in late
2008, the executive directors had voluntarily agreed to effect a
temporary reduction of 30% of basic remuneration in the cases of
Dr. Chen CHIANG and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG and 20% of basic
remuneration in the cases of Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, Mr. Stephen
Hau Leung CHUNG and Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG, all with effect
from 1 December 2008 until the business of the Group recovers
and when the executive directors consider appropriate. In view
of the global economy started and continued to recover from the
financial tsunami and the business operation of the Group had
become stable, all the executive directors had agreed to change
the rate of temporary reduction of their basic remuneration to
10% with effect from 1 March 2010. The basic remuneration of
the executive directors would be resumed to the original levels as
contained in their service agreements when the executive directors
consider appropriate.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



BA B R R M AL

—F-=#=f=t-H

9. EEME ()

(b) BITES(E)

FA - ARAMBESTEEN =
TTE=F=F+—RERZERE
HHE151,000,000 8 KRRz i@
o S IB I B 7S 3R R # P FE30%K
bl o ZFRBEA A ERFEN
SR PER - HFERR
AatHE -

FA - AEREVEETERHE A
SRV T AR S B AE R IATR
SEA 2 B - SHBERAR(E -

10. iEREEHE2ES

FR - IRESESMEZEEEELA
T FRR)EF EMECEH
SR EA TS A M FEQ

11. FriEBix

AREFRNBRNE L ERBUGH] -
WHBENGEHRIKIESS (ZF— =
F16.5%) BRIEL B - Hfbit[&
2 MR IR AR AN 6 B AR A P A B
RORERBZRITHEAE

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

During the year, two directors of the Company exercised share
options, which had been granted on 11 March 2003 to acquire, in
aggregate, 1,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company, details of
which are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which had been recognized in the income
statement over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included five (2012:
five) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements.

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2012:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

NEH Group
CE¥FT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
BNES : Current:
REERIAL H Charge for the year
BB Hong Kong 3 24
E b= Elsewhere 20,698 32,029
BAEFEDR(ZR)EMHE  Under/(over) provision in prior years (11,732) 3,591
EIE — [17#28 Deferred — note 28 7,356 6,284
AEERIAZ M Tax charge for the year 16,325 41,928

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1R
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

FABRBATE R B AR A A 7 R B
NEIFMEER Bl EE R 2 R E Rt
(B ERI2NZE25%) 2 B H -
ER BB ERTE MBS L2 A

expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates, ranging from 12% to 25%, for the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax

LUNNE
REE Group
CEETT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
R 5% A A Profit before tax 121,135 201,732
BEEREGE 2 HIA Tax at the statutory tax rates 31,712 48,057
fERIE 17 et 77 s Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

B ER, BIEHR R specific provinces and local authorities (9,993) (13,376)
Bied N el FEIG s N RE 1S Profits and losses attributable to associates (933) (188)
AR 2 T H Expenses not deductible for tax 9,895 18,131
BAGMTRIE 2 WA Income not subject to tax (8,577) (17,700)
RERZ RNFEMIB/BRE Tax losses for the year not recognized 2,942 6,206
FRARERBEFE Unrecognized tax losses from

IBEE prior years utilized (581) (7,289)
B FEENAIR IR 2 A Adjustments in respect of current tax of prior years (11,732) 3,591
REBZHBARDR Effect of withholding tax on distributable

FEEEMAH 2 & profits of the subsidiaries of the Group 3,592 4,496
BASEERNEFEZ Tax charge at the Group’s

FIESE effective tax rate 16,325 41,928

112 mremsmAE 2013 £3F
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2013 includes a loss of HK$37,851,000
(2012: HK$43,310,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 31).

R E 13. DIVIDENDS
CE#EFT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
FREMKE : Dividends paid during the year:
HE-_T——F=A=+—H Final in respect of the financial year

LEBIEF 8 2 KRR ended 31 March 2012 — HK$0.08

— B IEARE50.087T (year ended 31 March 2011: HK$0.19)

(Hz2—Z2——%=A=+—H per ordinary share

IFFE - B#0.1971) 50,341 119,559
FH - BT @mAE0.0257C  Interim — HK$0.025 (2012: HK$0.04)

—F——4F : E¥0.047T) per ordinary share 15,731 25,170

66,072 144,729

EERHRE Proposed final dividend:
RE— BT ERAER0.067T Final — HK$0.06 (2012: HK$0.08)

ZE—4F : B¥0.087T) per ordinary share 37,832 50,341

REFRFZZ KRR SABARFRER
RS RITZ RREFRGHARTT A
1FE o ZEP MR AR IR E K
PR e

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1R

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
These financial statements do not reflect the final dividend payable.
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14. XA BERBFEAELERER 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

BRERBNIREF AR R RERR
B ARG A S BRI #103,933,000
T( ZF — — F : & %160,334,000
T)RFRDETEBRZ NEF
¥ 629,358,992k ( — T — = F :
629,255,6000% ) 5T & P15

GREERT DIRIEF AR R RS
B AFEAE A S B 7% 103,933,000
TT(ZZ— =4 : #¥160,334,0007T)
Ko A% 2 hn#E 5 £1629,526,796%
(—Z——1F : 629,736,4000%) (BNtE
FRERZNAMAFREZEITL B
2 DN HE F 15 $1629,358,9928% ( — T —
—4F 1 629,255,6000% ) K B2 & F A 14 R
TE 2 BRIED 2 BT B R EMETE
A 17,2 X mAR i F 19 81167,804
f%( == — — 4 : 480,8000% ) ) 5t & Fr

=]
e

114 mremsmAE 2013 £iF

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year of HK$103,933,000 (2012: HK$160,334,000) and on
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 629,358,992
(2012: 629,255,600) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the
year of HK$103,933,000 (2012: HK$160,334,000) and on the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 629,526,796 (2012:
629,736,400), being the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 629,358,992 (2012: 629,255,600) in issue during the year as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 167,804 (2012: 480,800) assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all
share options outstanding during the year.
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15. 1% - BMERRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
—E—=%=-A=+—H 31 March 2013
KRR
kEF R BE
HERT g B
Freehold REtRE
land and Plant,
buildings, ERIE machinery,
AEE Group and leasehold ~ Construction  furniture and @t
(EEFT) (HK$ '000) buildings in progress other equipment Total
R-E——FNA—H At 1 April 2012
AR Cost 779,382 31,705 994,807 1,805,894
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation
RRE and impairment (195,981) - (695,540) (891,521)
FETE Net carrying amount 583,401 31,705 299,267 914,373
W_ZE——#mA—H: At 1 April 2012, net of
EMREGITE accumulated depreciation
RiRE and impairment 583,401 31,705 299,267 914,373
AE Additions 2,055 92,417 19,036 113,508
HE Disposals - - (912) (912)
FE8H Write-offs (521) - (589) (1,110)
i Transfers 11,878 (20,733) 8855 -
KEEWERE Depreciation provided during the year (23,244) - (43,219) (66,463)
B R Exchange realignment 768 127 242 1,137
W_Z-=#=ZA=+-8" At 31 March 2013, net of
BB ERTE accumulated depreciation
RRE and impairment 574,337 103,516 282,680 960,533
RZZ—=%=A=+—-H At 31 March 2013
AR Cost 793,828 103,516 1,000,793 1,898,137
ZEE Accumulated depreciation
RRE and impairment (219,491) - (718,113) (937,604)
FETE Net carrying amount 574,337 103,516 282,680 960,533
EHEEARAT 2013 F8§ CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUALREPORT2013 115
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2013

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

31 March 2012

KAEEL
kEF K BE
nEgr e &R
Freehold REMRE
land and Plant,
buildings, RRIE machinery,
XK@ Group and leasehold ~ Construction  furniture and @
(ERFT) (HK$ '000) buildings in progress other equipment Total
RZE——FEA—H At 1 April 2011
AR Cost 749,097 13,570 905,012 1,667,679
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation
RR{E and impairment (168,632) - (656,104) (824,736)
FERE Net carrying amount 580,465 13,570 248 908 842,943
RZE——FWA-H" At 1 April 2011, net of
ENGREAIE accumulated depreciation
RiRE and impairment 580,465 13,570 248908 842,943
NE Additions 4614 23,776 77974 106,364
HE Disposals - - (927) (927)
B Write-offs - (15) (2,111) (2,126)
frte Transfers 3,538 (6,220) 2,682 -
KEEHERE Depreciation provided during the year (22,684) - (36,262) (58,946)
i A% Exchange realignment 17,468 594 9,003 27,065
RZE-—%#=ZA=+-8" At 31 March 2012, net of
EHRZEE accumulated depreciation
RRE and impairment 583,401 31,705 299,267 914,373
RZE-—%#=A=+-H At 31 March 2012
AR Cost 779,382 31,705 994,807 1,805,894
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation
RR{E and impairment (195,981) - (695,540) (891,521)
FERE Net carrying amount 583,401 31,705 299,267 914,373

116 mremsmAE 2013 Fif

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



B R ML Notes to Financial Statements

—=-=fF=f=+—§ 31 March 2013
15. 9% - BMENRRE(E) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
BIER E RSB A KA E R The Group’s freehold land and buildings, and leasehold buildings
FiEF  REEEFZHTHT : included above are analyzed as follows:
REE Group
(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
B MROET Leasehold buildings held under:
BB ZPEEY Medium term leases in Hong Kong 11,195 11,651
FEEBAIMEE 2 R EIZ24T  Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 469,272 475,435
480,467 487,086
EBEBAIMEE 2 Freehold land and buildings
KAZEREL M R IETF held outside Hong Kong 93,870 96,315
574,337 583,401
EWEEERAT 2013 F8§ CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 117
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2013

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Company
(HK$'000)

ERRHMERE
Furniture and
other equipment

—T-=#=fA=+-AH

RZZE——FWmA—A "

31 March 2013

At 1 April 2012,

Bk EFITE net of accumulated depreciation 443
KEZIFERE Depreciation provided during the year (99)
R-ZE—=F=ZA=+—8" At 31 March 2013,

BBk EFITE net of accumulated depreciation 344
RZE—=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2013

F AR Cost 2,460

BEtinE Accumulated depreciation (2,116)
AR FAE Net carrying amount 344
—E——F=A=+—H 31 March 2012
RZZE——FWmMA—A At 1 April 2011,

Bk EFITE net of accumulated depreciation 542
KEZIFERE Depreciation provided during the year (99)
R-ZE——F=A=+—8" At 31 March 2012,

Bk EFITE net of accumulated depreciation 443
RZE——F=A=+—H At 31 March 2012

DN Cost 5,345

ZEtIE Accumulated depreciation (4,902)
AR FAE Net carrying amount 443
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—E-=F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2013
16. B L bHE K 16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
REEH Group
CEETT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
REYRRAEE Carrying amount at beginning of year 46,530 47,092
AR Amortized during the year (1,819) (1,801)
b 5 R Exchange realignment 112 1,239
R=A=1+—BMNERE Carrying amount at 31 March 44,823 46,530
MEE D BIEE Current portion included in
A& BRNFIER deposits, prepayments and
E e U BRI (B E22) other receivables (note 22) (1,829) (1,823)
IEmRBNE D Non-current portion 42,994 44,707
AREEFE FFMEEEM T HHAER The Group’s prepaid land lease payments included above are analyzed
DNTRAT - as follows:
REE Group
(BB FT) (HK$°000) 2013 2012
s A MTEN L HHEER Prepaid land lease payments held under:
EEB 2 P EIRY Medium term leases in Hong Kong 13,961 14,357
FEBEBLAIMEE Medium term leases outside
ZHERERAY Hong Kong 30,862 32,173
44,823 46,530
17. 58 17. GOODWILL
rEH Group
(BEFT) (HK$°000) 2013 2012
[EES Goodwill 94,931 94,931
EHEEARAT 2013 F8§ CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 119
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17. GOODWILL (continued)

AERE

HEKEHEECHEEDETETH
BRAREITRENR - ZEWEBARZ
el EENIREEREB A EE
T RTEMANBRSREEAN AT
BTEE AERN - WEFERAEEHENEZE
REPEEHIERERITIRE o BIHTE
EMFIERB TEFURBEFENE
W RERMEH RS RETEAM
ARITRETEAI% (ZE—=F : 7%)
(Fian) - ARB IR B AR 2 e
% o AFHE 2N MIRERESBH

st
= o
Ea

18. R AR 2 IRE

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated
to certain subsidiaries for impairment testing. The recoverable amount
of the subsidiaries has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation include the expected growth rate and discount rate.
The financial budgets are prepared reflecting current and prior years
performance and development expectations. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 9% (2012: 7%) which is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant subsidiaries. The cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate
of 5%.

18.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AAHE Company
(E®For) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
JE LT - BKANME Unlisted shares, at cost 172,370 172,370
JEUCB B A B BRFUFER Due from subsidiaries, net 1,078,484 1,070,966
JEAHI B A J1BR 3K Due to subsidiaries (516,470) (512,091)
IERENER Non-current portion 734,384 731,245
— R B A EIBRR Due from a subsidiary included in
BEERBSEEN current assets 127,878 191,171
862,262 922,416

BB AR R AR - B
FHBA B < BRRERRE T RIR T 5 5
RUELF B o FH BB A T2 BR e
BREHENB AR REEERENE
o AREEERBERRTZEAR
BRI NZESE B EEMEAT
FRFB15127,878,000(—E—— 4 :
75 #191,171,0007T ) 4b + 57 — FE UK Bt
BARIBRRARERER -

120 mwsmsmAE 2013 35

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured. The balances with
certain subsidiaries bear interest at prevailing market rates. As
the balances with subsidiaries arose from advances to/from the
subsidiaries for the purpose of operational financing, the Company
does not intend to demand settlement of the amounts involved
within 12 months from the end of the reporting period, except for
an amount due from a subsidiary of HK$127,878,000 (2012:
HK$191,171,000), which is repayable on demand.
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18. R B AT 2R E (&) 18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

MW-ZE—=#=ZA=+—8 " #tEk
AT HB AR BRI ERE LS
#84,400,0007C( — T — —F : B
73,900,0007T) °

FA - EKE THEB R RRRER
B #10,500,00070( ZF — 4 -
75 4,400,000 ) - HAKEMERE
#£196,748,0007L( ZF —ZF : B
239,000,0007T) - EEEED EEZ
EMBARICEESRE -

TEMBRRZFIBEINNELSE
1598 A -

As at 31 March 2013, there was an impairment of HK$84,400,000
(2012: HK$73,900,000) made on amounts due from certain
subsidiaries.

During the vyear, impairment losses of HK$10,500,000 (2012:
HK$4,400,000) were recognized for amounts due from certain
subsidiaries, with a total gross carrying amount of HK$196,748,000
(2012: HK$239,000,000). The impairment provision had taken into
account the net asset values of the subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 155 to
159.

19. RIE QR 2 RE 19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

rEHE Group
CEMTFoTr) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
EIEEERE Share of net assets 28,657 24,801

ERBE QR RRBEAE ZHHRA -
ERR - RER—BR=+RKAZA -
gt R=ZE—=F=ZA=+—H &
JEEE R A BRRE 15,359,000 (=
— T4 : 7 542,0007T) B R A B
BOREBRERA - REBEREME
2587 °

FIEASBZBERRAB/NTEAR
FANE (TR B ) s ff e it eh B BE AR &
ZEFEAN °

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1

The balances due to the associates are trade related, unsecured,
interest-free and normally settled on a term of 30 days. Accordingly, as
at 31 March 2013, the amounts due to associates of HK$5,359,000
(2012: HK$7,542,000) are included in the trade and bills payables, as
disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements.

All of the Group’s associates are corporate entities registered in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and operating in Mainland
China.
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—E—=F=A=+—H 31 March 2013
19. Rt E AR 2 RE (#&) 19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Bt N E 2 A AR T Particulars of the associates are as follows:
REBAEL
ERTRAEE ERAsk
BWEAR Percentage of
Nominal value of ownership interest FEEK
718 issued share/ attributable Principal
Name paid-up capital to the Group activities
FRILT B R ER AR A E 1,520,000% 7T 25 FE MIHE
Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry Co., Ltd. US$1,520,000 DRER B E W
Manufacture and sale
of iron casting products
FRILTIERE E R ER R AR 800,000% 7T 25 BCLED
Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery US$800,000 Dormant
Company, Limited ©
Kt - Notes:
(1) bt RARIBERBEBL K SN EIEATH (1) The above companies are not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or
K SN ERTBER B EMmKE RN another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.
R ©
2) AT =A=1+—HAH®RKEH (2) The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to conform with
B AFAHIEBR AR ZSREHE] - their holding company’s reporting date.
(3) HEXARLTBEMER o (3) The English company name is translated for identification purpose only.
FERN - ANEENEN BN TUERE S The Group received no dividend income (2012: HK$2,982,000) from
WA(ZZE——4F : B#20820005T) ° an associate during the year.
TEREY|ANEE BN BB R E R The following table illustrates the summarized financial information of
BFENEREEIERE the Group’s associates extracted from their management accounts:
(EBFT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
BE Assets 155,015 144,787
afE Liabilities (36,491) (42,481)
Was Revenues 112,118 109,559
A Net profit 15,717 3,174
122 mEmeEmsRA=R 2013 585 CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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20. 78 20. INVENTORIES
AEEH Group
(GE®For) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
JR# Raw materials 277,518 272,244
TR m Work in progress 275,420 218,532
BN o Finished goods 289,389 406,599
842,327 897,375
21. EWE S REBRM 21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
rEH Group
CEMTFor) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
FEWE 5 N EIHRIRR Trade and bills receivables 903,686 795,280
EE Impairment (70,125) (73,931)
833,561 721,349

BEPZ2BRGRR—RARERS - R1T
EBRIEARE - AEEREBESEF
ZREBENREBRHEER  FOE
EMANTR RETARERHME
Rz xR - AEREEES - A%
I SR B BR AR R AR HE 15 B R R e B W B
R BREERAREERK -

ER LR ER LA KBRS S K
SERRFRBREDHEP AR - BUR
BEANETEERR - AEELE5L
A REHBF A TR AR E A IR ER
20 o RERWE S REBERRL
B AL o

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank bills
or on credit. Customers are granted credit at the discretion of the
Group, subject to their respective business strength and creditability.
The average credit period is 90 days and extension of credit period is
made for customers with good trading and repayment records. The
Group adopts strict control policies over credit terms and receivables
that serve to minimize credit risk.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and
bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. The
trade and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2013

21. EWE S REBIR(E) 21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
JEWE 5 R EFRRFREREZEB N The movements in impairment allowance for trade and bills receivables
T are as follows:
REE Group
(BB Fr) (HK$°000) 2013 2012
REL] At beginning of year 73,931 90,784
BRI ERE Impairment losses charged/

BIEEE, (AR (write-back of impairment losses credited)

SRER ) FEE (K A7) to the income statement, net (note 7) 382 (16,516)
R RN EL ] Amounts written off as uncollectible (5,476) (3,455)
PE R R Exchange realignment 1,288 3,118
W=A=+—H At 31 March 70,125 73,931
E it EWE 5 N EBIRFUS B EET Included in the above impairment allowance for trade and bills
BIESEEERRAERKE SRS receivables is an allowance for individually impaired trade receivables
B #563,540,000T( —F — —4F : B of HK$63,540,000 (2012: HK$67,172,000) with a gross carrying
67,172,0007T) » EREERI 2 BREE&E amount before provision of HK$84,239,000 (2012: HK$72,082,000).
BB 84, 239,000T( ZE——F : B The individually impaired trade and bills receivables relate to customers
#72,082,0007T ) © B Y18 B 5 (8 B that were in default or delinquency in interest or principal payments
ZEWE 5 RERRFS R B AE and only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

2 ¥R R TR R AT AR BB 5 FE UK BR R 2

BF -

WIRBRERENERE S N ERER The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables, based on the

RIAEEBEZRRATAT payment due date, that are not considered to be impaired is as

follows:

rEH Group

CEEFT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012

REIE (I AR ARk R(E) Current (neither past due nor impaired) 639,047 544,179

BELR TR Less than 90 days past due 100,882 100,439

mHNL+—Z2—AN\t+X 91 to 180 days past due 39,371 41,636

AR —E N\ +X Over 180 days past due 54,261 35,095
833,561 721,349

124 mpemsmAE 2013 £3F
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22.

W E S REERR(E)

W AR BRI E < FEMGR IS KA R
BN ZER

EA B BRI E 2 YRR B A
TEAKRBERFRXZHTHENBILE
HREEERYEEAEY - A%SHE
SIDBR AR 2 EURE - EAR B R
FERRPE IR E R -

A%~ ANRER AW ERTR

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

22.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AEH ¥ NN
Group Company
(BT T) (HK$'000) 2013 2012 2013 2012
HEASSENE Deposits and prepayments 31,849 37,400 417 417
TER THAEE K - Prepaid land lease payments,
meEEo (MiF16) current portion (note 16) 1,829 1,823 - -
E b U BR IR Other receivables 21,344 42,061 363 313
55,022 81,284 780 730

HZEBEMEBMNRE - BHTHE
BOE B MOT H B R FRAC 8% 2 FRUR

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1

None of these assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets
included in these balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.
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23. B ITER 23.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

NEE Group

CEETT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012

IRERITIEFR - FERBIEES  Pledged bank deposits, non-current portion - 6,075

EIRRITIER - mEEBD Pledged bank deposits, current portion 80,280 76,943
80,280 83,018

EERREETRPBIRELE 2B
NAFFEZEMRITER HPB
#41,343,000( ZF —ZF : BK
57,495,0007T ) R{EERFBIARRkEE T
VBHMERTRELE -ENER B
#32.839,000T( —&F — ZF : B
19,448,0007T ) AYEE R T HIERE A
RITHEAESR ZEEZELAENES
MEERERA - UK E#6,098,0007T
(ZZ—=%F : B%6,075,0007T ) A {E
BRI R B RRE 2 TE Y 2 7
SRR o

ERIRI T BRI B AT B2 K040 8%
ZHEEBRT -

126 mupsEEERAR 2013 £

Balances included pledged bank deposits of certain subsidiaries
operating in Mainland China, including HK$41,343,000 (2012:
HK$57,495,000) for securing certain loans granted by certain financial
institutions in  Mainland China to independent third parties,
HK$32,839,000 (2012: HK$19,448,000) for securing bank
acceptance notes, included in the trade and bills payables, to
suppliers, and HK$6,098,000 (2012: HK$6,075,000) for securing
payments of construction costs of industrial buildings in Mainland
China.

The pledged bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

24.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

REHE AT
Group Company
(BB FT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012 2013 2012
He RIRITHETT Cash and bank balances 510,496 545,084 24,503 9,540
F RS EE AR Bank deposits with
JRERW A original maturity of
TR=MEA less than three months
2 TEHTFRK when acquired 241,690 149,149 45,087 -
Rek Cash and
REEEY cash equivalents 752,186 694,233 69,590 9,540
F RS EE AR Bank deposits with
JRERW A original maturity of
HBiE=EA more than three months
2 TEHTFRK when acquired 33,940 121,321 - -
1818 & MIRITHETF Total cash and bank balances 786,126 815,554 69,590 9,540
M ROGFERABITEBEERFHF Note:  The cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily

RIRBAE. - RFAEERSNHE
ko MESZH—RENEATEH
ERER  WIAE BF B R ERER
FE o SRITHEFFHNIL BT HE
Wik BIEBIRIT -

REEBERAR 2013 FH

bank deposit rates. The time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and six months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

EH Group

CEETT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012

KREIER Current 323,201 295,557

—ZE=ht+K 1 to 90 days 72,222 65,365

N+—RK=2—BAN+X 91 to 180 days 4,632 9,764

BBE—aNntxk Over 180 days 11,308 21,875
411,363 392,561

FEINE 5 M ERBRRIL M AR - FEAS
B5 LEBERRE T RRERNBE AT
IR 5,359,000 (Z B ——4F : &
#7,542,0007T) © AN FERB/=1TRK
AEAN AL SV Rk NI R
ERP B FRFARLT -

26. Hitt ER IR R EFTAE

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Included in the
trade and bills payables are trade payables of HK$5,359,000 (2012:
HK$7,542,000) due to associates which are repayable within 30 days,
which represent similar credit terms to those offered by the associates
to their major customers.

26.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

rEE b /N
Group Company
(B¥For) (HK$000) 2013 2012 2013 2012
BUEET& Deposits received 62,363 74,890 57 53
EEraER Accruals and
EmaE other liabilities 178,706 175,623 6,285 14,133
241,069 250,513 6,342 14,186

FEARMENEFEFBENSRE
EILTHFE
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The financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals are
non-interest-bearing.
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—E—=%=A=+—H 31 March 2013
27. 5T EBITER 27.INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
BRI
Effective
AEEH Group interest rate Z| 5
CEMTFT) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2013 2012
IRITERE R Bank loans repayable 1.8 2013
—FR - B within one year, unsecured (2012: 1.9) (2012:2012) 231,625 213,045
EBRIE
Effective
b N Company interest rate 2 HA
CEMTFT) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2013 2012
RITEEE Bank loans repayable 1.7 2013
—FR - EEAR within one year, unsecured (2012: 2.1) (2012:2012) 150,000 120,000
REB RARNE 2 EEFIRITERAE The Group’s and the Company’s unsecured bank loans are at floating
B FEET S o rates.
EREBMARAT 2013 FR CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 129
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28. EELEHIE 28. DEFERRED TAX
FN - EERBAGREESZHNOT : The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year
are as follows:
EEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
B

TEE Group B Withholding st
(BEFoT) (HK$'000) Provisions tax Total
R-_ZT——FHHA—H At 1 April 2011 58 11,518 11,576
KEERIEERINEG, Deferred tax charged/(credited)

(BT ) ZIRERITE to the income statement

SFRE(KTEELL) during the year, net (note 11) (61) 4,496 4,435
B ARRABFE Withholding tax on repatriation of

B earnings from subsidiaries - (5,262) (5,262)
b 5 B Exchange realignment 13 24 37
RZT——F At 31 March 2012

—A=+—HkK and 1 April 2012

—ZE-—FPUA—H 10 10,776 10,786
KEERIEERINEG, Deferred tax charged/(credited)

(BT ) ZIRERITE to the income statement

SREA(MAELD) during the year, net (note 11) (37) 3,592 3,555
B ARRABFE Withholding tax on repatriation of

B earnings from subsidiaries - (3,266) (3,266)
M H 5 R Exchange realignment 27 (92) (65)
RZE—=F Gross deferred tax liabilities

—A=+—H recognized in the

ZHERNREFERNE  consolidated statement of

RIERIA BB EE financial position at 31 March 2013 - 11,010 11,010
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28. IRIERIE (&) 28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

EEREEE Deferred tax assets
rEH Group BiE BEER st
(EBFIT) (HK$°000) Provisions Tax losses Total
RZE—FWNA—H At 1 April 2011 70,739 8,106 78,845
REFERREREA Deferred tax credited/(charged)

($kR) 2 IEERL IR to the income statement

SFRB(MAEIL) during the vear, net (note 11) (7,938) 6,089 (1,849)
b Exchange realignment 2,758 316 3,074
RZE——F At 31 March 2012 and

=A=+—HAk 1 April 2012

—E——FMmMA—H 65,559 14,511 80,070
AERZRBE RN Deferred tax charged

ZIEFERIA to the income statement

SERE(MEEIL) during the vear, net (note 11) (3,378) (423) (3,801)
b 54 R B Exchange realignment 254 55 309
RZE—=%F Gross deferred tax assets

=A=+—H recognized in the

ZHERNGATEMREK  consolidated statement of

EIERIEEERE financial position at 31 March 2013 62,435 14,143 76,578

RAEB I REEBBERNEBRBE
273,669,0007L( = FE — ZF: B
271,048,0007T ) B IR 78 HR B K B
#99,890,0007L( — & — — & : B ¥
92,635,0007T) - AJ K SHER1S LB 18
ZARAIBEZERTEN o BT —
=F=A=+—BRBEZERBET]
TEET O] FAYEE IR P B AR R B A
Fi T8 51875 %61,620,00050( =T — =
& ¢ H5#58,043,0007T) 40+ AR ER S
NAIE RSB —BRIFRE - WETERE
R N AT B B R - R R X
LEERRELEHIEEE - LARERE
IERIAEEH - BiEE138,270,0007T
— T — B #34,592,0007T ) K9
MIBEIE AR IBEEE £ R T FRE
HY o MBI AERERRTE o

RIEEEBMRLF 2013 F1R

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$273,669,000
(2012: HK$271,048,000) and in Mainland China of HK$99,890,000
(2012: HK$92,635,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Except
for tax losses arising in Mainland China of HK$61,620,000 (2012:
HK$58,043,000) as at 31 March 2013 to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilized, deferred tax assets have not been recognized
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in those companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilized. Included in unrecognized tax losses are losses
of HK$38,270,000 (2012: HK$34,592,000) that will expire within five
years from the date losses arose. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.
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28. EAERIIE () 28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

IRIE D SEFETUE - R BIARRER
RINERERINEREESTIRIRERE
HMIO% T - B — TS \F—F—H
BESWEAR-_SZTLF+-A=1
—HERIAEF o fWhREINERE
EFTERDERERETBRBIRL - BIFT8E
HRBEMINAREE - KEBRFA
HE R ER5% 3 10% °

SN - IRIE B EBHBIRIED] - IR
JERBRRE K2 BB KU 20 % 048
Bt e BHI - REREAFN B EKILA %
S5 P % R EE A O NI PTIR 3 2 BB A
I

R-ZE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—0 KAEEHE
F AR B K FEPK 3L RO BT B A RIR Bh R BE
R A B FE T 0 AR iR R IR - H
EERZEENEREERELES £
752,949,000 ( ZFE — ZF B
#701,887,0007T) - EFRA * ZE
ME A TR R BER Al RAR R D BEER =
ZENF—A—HERRZEF -

M-ZT—=F=fA=+—0 " FTEHRE
MAMELEZREERINNE AT
EAERA R E R = R E MR AET
RIEaEA L4978 %49,164,0007T( =
T— 4 : B¥49,636,0007T) °

AN ) A R SRR 3 2 B B 3 SR AT AR P
BHFE -

132 mwsmsmAd 2013 £iF

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement was
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates during the year were 5%
or 10%.

In addition, pursuant to Taiwan withholding tax regulations, a 20%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to non-resident
shareholders. Therefore, the Group is liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Taiwan in
respect of earnings generated.

At 31 March 2013, no deferred tax has been recognized for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of
the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China, of which the
aggregate amount of temporary differences have not been recognized
totalled approximately HK$752,949,000 (2012: HK$701,887,000). In
the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute their earnings accrued after 1 January 2008 in the
foreseeable future.

At 31 March 2013, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with the investments in subsidiaries established in Taiwan
for which deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax have
not been recognized totalled approximately HK$49,164,000 (2012:
HK$49,636,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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29. g 29. SHARE CAPITAL
(BEFor) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
JERE Authorized:
1,000,000,0000% & 37 A% 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
B E0.107T of HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
BBITREHEAR Issued and fully paid:
630,531,600/ (==& — =4 : 630,531,600 (2012:
629,255,600/% ) & A% 629,255,600) ordinary shares
FRE0.107T of HK$0.10 each 63,053 62,926
FR - BERTIRL,276,0000% 8E M #E 2 3R During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 1,276,000 share
BRI G T BRAEK1.988T 2 1TEE options were exercised at the exercise price of HK$1.988 per ordinary
EITE(KTRE30) » ALt WARELD share (note 30), resulting in the issue of 1,276,000 ordinary shares of
B D 537 000 T ( AT AZEIT ) & HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before issue expenses, of
BT IREE S #0.107T 21,276,000 approximately HK$2,537,000 in aggregate.

B -

RAFBERTET BRI AEFHF S Details of the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share
N capital are as follows:
28T =)oy & 47
ZEREAE & wER
Number of Issued Share
ordinary shares share premium et
in issue capital account Total

BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE——FmA—RH At 1 April 2011,
—Z——H=RF=+—H 31 March 2012
ER-ZT——&pmA—A and 1 April 2012 629,255,600 62,926 507,170 570,096
FETTE 2 AR Share options exercised 1,276,000 127 2410 2537
R-T—=F
=A=+—H At 31 March 2013 630,531,600 63,053 509,580 572,633
EHEEERAT 2013 F# CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 133
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30. B MR 1 30. SHARE OPTIONS

KERARANRZEZ=_FNA=Z+=
HRITZERREAFAS BB LR
RFER - ARBIDHEM—ERETE
([2002F 512l ]) ° 20024F 5 8 2 HABR
ERZZE——FNAZ+=HEHRE
4 O AR AR R AR R 20024F 51 8l F DA
) - 20026 5t &l 2 RS 20024
FTEEmATE R DR EEE R
RN o IBIR20026F 51 &I 2 BB AR 4
WA Fi58 AR B KRR RAE
ERE R -

20026 5T &I 2 FHIBEIIINT ¢
(@) BW

HEEMZ2RARREEELR
% AT VEH B RA T T LA SR e B o

(b) BEA

() ANEEFEAKE S EAERR

RBIBE20025 T8 2 E &)
SRR AR BRI B 2 (AR A
2z

(@) EAER(THENTTH
T - BREEAEIIE
WITES) MER (TwmE
EREGRE) - X

(b) EEHEHZ EA

134 muasmsmAd 2013 £3F

Pursuantto an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 23 August 2002, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”). The scheme period of the
2002 Scheme expired on 23 August 2012 (such that no further options
could be granted under the 2002 Scheme) but the provisions of the
2002 Scheme continued to govern options granted prior to the expiry
of the 2002 Scheme. Share options under the 2002 Scheme do not
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’
meetings.

The particulars of the 2002 Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential contribution
to the Group from the eligible participants.

(b) Participants
(i) (a) any director (whether executive or non-executive,

including any independent non-executive director) and
employee (whether full time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for,
any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder (as

defined under the 2002 Scheme) or any company controlled
by a controlling shareholder;

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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30. BREE)

(b) BEA(E)

(i) FHAAREEEAIRKE HIEME

HxHx%‘JZ? P B R A2 Wl 2 A ]

RAABETZENERTA
AR

(i) 7 S T 2 oA AT R
58 o i R IR A A (AT 2
2

() EAXRBRAERH
FHSERSEA  AER

(b) EAAT A 1 k12 B8 4 ¢ A
7 BRIEMBRME
HAETFER - EXEEK
Hip SEEFEEA R

el

(c) HH%ZTE{"H F&

2 iy
- I:l
5

d) ERFIMBZEMES -

I:I

F2002F 5 EIME - 2HABRE
s S RRE D/U:{H"JE?E‘J 2
GEE= PR A R CIFN

REEEERAR 2013 FH

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

30. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b) Participants (continued)

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; and

(iii) (@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor or distributor of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services in respect of
business operations to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to, or

(d) any customer of goods or services of,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder.

For the purposes of the 2002 Scheme, the participants shall

include any company controlled by one or more persons belonging
to any of the above classes of participants.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

)

136

A FRITEBRREE LR
BHR2002F 5T EIER T ——4F
)\ﬁ_"f’:E@/ﬁ ’ /ﬁﬁ%@ﬂXT
S

BUSREATERES LR

BRARIR2002F 51 & Z IR X S 174
SN - B2 BEAEEMN+ @A
NEEREBREZ AL  RIE

20024F &t &l R AN A FE fa] H b B
RRETEIFT R T 2 AR (1R
Bt - BT REARITEZER
BE) TLATTEE - FTEfT RIEBITZ
Bt LR TS EBAAR R EITR
KEI1% ©

AREERERBEER R

MR HEREZ BT TFR - %K
ARREERNE L FAEEHNR
RHAR -

BRERTEALARANRENY
R(mAE)

RIZHBER - ARREZHE
EEBBRNTERVARE &
MEIR(E) -

RIEEBEERAA 2013 £

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

30. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

As the 2002 Scheme expired on 23 August 2012, no ordinary
shares are available for issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted under the 2002 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to any
participant (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding share
options), in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the ordinary shares in issue unless otherwise
approved in accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken up under
a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option or such
shorter period as the board of directors of the Company determines
at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of directors of the

Company will determine the minimum period(s), if any, for which
a share option must be held before it can be exercised.
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(g

(h)

()

BABREZENSERIROAR

EREBREZOZAE(BEZ
BIO+ARAARREMZE
#) o REIXSNEREZOR - &
18 ¥1.007T °

EERRETEEIEE

TTHERBRER A TN 2 B8R
TEEFEARRFESTRRE - H
TEERELRTIIERSE

() BRXARELARELZER
WEXRTE 2 AR EE BB
ME(EAMBEREER):

(i) REERLAHALEEXA
R R PrE 2 B R RERPT
HzARE BB FHES
B: R

(i) AR EBBZEE -
200255 B2 B
20025 A2 BERMFR R+

WER-_E——HFNA=-+=HE
o

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1R

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

30. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(g

(h)

()

Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and the
period within which the payment must be made

An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted within
forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer was made.
The amount payable on acceptance of the offer for an option is
HK$1.00.

Basis of determining the exercise price of the share options

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option shall be determined by the board of directors of the
Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of grant, which must be a
business day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share of the Company.

Life of the 2002 Scheme

The 2002 Scheme has a life of ten years and expired on 23 August
2012.

137

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



BA B R R M AL

—T-=#=A=+-H

30. BRE(E)

FRWERLERE - R EBRRET
IR o TFI B F AR IE2002F

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

30. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

No share option was granted, cancelled or lapsed during the year. The

following share options were exercised under the 2002 Scheme during

STEI 2 ETTE 2 B AR the year:
SEAZBEZAER BRITEE"
Name or category of BhEsA R AE B8R Exercise price
participants Number of share options Date of grant* Exercise period per share**
RIE-ZF FARE O FREAR O FRAR R-B-ZF
mA—-H Granted Exercised lapsed ZA=1-H
At 1 April during during during At 31 March
2012 the year the year the year 2013
(RIAIE) (RIAE) ETT
(DIMIY) (DIMY) HK$
gz
Directors
s
Chi Kin CHIANG 334,000 - (334,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.983
EYER 332,000 - (332,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1.983
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 334,000 - (334,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.983
666,000 - (666,000) - -
/NaF Subtotal 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - -
EE(RESH)
Employees (other than directors)
af 10,000 - (10,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1.983
In aggregate 24,000 - (24,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.983
142,000 - (142,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.983
100,000 - (100,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2009 - 10/3/2013 1.983
/T Subtotal 276,000 - (276,000) - -
B Total 1,276,000 - (1,276,000) - -

* BREZFBHEDEREAMEET
ERRFAM AL -

o EARATRR - RRA R AL
BRASEHY, - RSARAE 2 (TR A TR -

138 muzEmaRAR 2013 £

*

* %k

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options was subject to adjustment in the

case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s
share capital.
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30. B HE(E) 30. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
B Notes:
(1) ARARZEBRR_ZET=F=A+— (1) The closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company on 11 March 2003
AR TEARBRE1.987T was HK$1.98 per share.
(2) 2002FFTEI2BAEARFETFEZE (2) The weighted average closing prices of the shares in which the share
R HEE 2 hnkEF I Ry U T B AN T ¢ options were exercised during the year by the participants of the 2002

Scheme were as follows:

IEEFE YW HE

Weighted average closing prices
BETEHAI—X RiTER
Immediately before On the date
the date of exercise of exercise
B BB
SHEAZHEARER Name or category of participants HK$ HK$
R Chi Kin CHIANG 2.55 2.48
EMR Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 2.62 2.65
EE(BRESHN) Employees (other than directors) 2.54 2.53

(3) RIE2002F 5T EIBH T L ERE 2R (3) The share options granted under the 2002 Scheme are for a consideration
EAEE1.00T - of HK$1.00 per grant.

(4) 0B 7% 3R R W F29FT R 0 F A (4) 1,276,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the issue
1,276,000% fE AS ST T - BUF 31T of 1,276,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company and
1,276,000 J& & i% 18 78 ¥0.107T A A new share capital of approximately HK$127,000 and share premium of
AIE AR AT AR ET A BT ATIE hn ik approximately HK$2,410,000 (before issue expenses), as detailed in note
#7127, ,0007T K AR 19 )3 B 4978 1 29 to the financial statements.
2,410,0007T °

5) R—ZE—=F=A=+—H ' ARQ7 (5) As at 31 March 2013, the Company had no (2012: 1,276,000) share
RIBE2002F s8IV E( T ——F - options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme.

1,276,000/% ) it AR 17152 #) BB AR A
BREEERAT 2013 £ CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 1 39
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31. & 31. RESERVES

A%

AR R R R R
BRITHRERN A RSB HED

ETE

RESERRNE  DEEHRNBRA
B MR ERAR R D B R A BIZAK— 88
DB FEREE — T AR 2 BEARE
B - EERENHEEIZARER
50%8 - AT EF BB EAN - MZE
AT AT el NI 1R

RETEEIHBECERPINGER
BHEZED - ARBNFEAREZE
Rl PNV S =g it By
(L RRRFIERZFEE) BEE%
HiFBRERREEEEMEARS0%

140 mupsEmERAR 2013 £

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the financial statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of their profits after
tax to a capital reserve, which is non-distributable. When the capital
reserve has accumulated to 50% of their capital, up to 50% of the
capital reserve may be capitalized. The capital reserve may be utilized
at anytime to offset any deficit.

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, certain of
the Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer a
portion of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve fund, which are
restricted as to use, until the accumulated total reaches 50% of their
registered capital.
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31. (&) 31.RESERVES (continued)
ANF] Company
By  EREE
R ERR R
Share Capital EX&fHE KRERR
premium redemption Capital Retained st
CE#FT) (HK$'000) account reserve reserve profits Total
N_FE——FMOHA—H At 1 April 2011 507,170 295 2,904 292,866 803,235
REE & R Profit for the year and
REEBREEWE total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 77,511* 77,511
E_E——fF Final dividend for the
—A=+—BHLFE year ended
ZARERR B (M:E13) 31 March 2011 (note 13) - - - (119,559) (119,559)
FRERRR B (At 13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (25,170) (25,170)
N-_E——4F At 31 March 2012
—A=+—8HK and 1 April 2012
—E——FMmMA—H 507,170 295 2,904 225,648 736,017
REEHEF R Profit for the year and
REFBEEEWE total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 41,226* 41,226
BATHRR (M 5E29) Issue of new shares (note 29) 2,410 - - - 2,410
IEAR Transfer of share option
E AR R reserve upon the expiry of
[ 2 B share option scheme - - (2,904) 2,904 -
(2T ——F Final dividend for the
—A=+—BHLFE year ended
ZARERE B (MiE13) 31 March 2012 (note 13) - - - (50,341)  (50,341)
FRERRR B (MaE13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (15,731) (15,731)
R-E—=F=A=+—H At31 March 2013 509,580 295 - 203,706 713,581

* ZEGERN-KBRARAMEBZRE *
I A #50,000,00070( = B — — 4 -
7 #100,000,0007T ) + #E & T H B2
AIFB 2 BB I A B 11,458,000
T(ZF—Z=F : #%5,710,0007T)
WETHERBMEZHBRAD

#0208 119,0007T( — & — —F : #H I
19,511,0007T) * Kt HE TH B A
FIBR 3 2 R /E 7 #10,500,0007C( =&
— 1 : #%4,400,0007T) °

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1R
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The balance includes dividend income from a subsidiary of HK$50,000,000
(2012: HK$100,000,000), management fee income from certain
subsidiaries of HK$11,458,000 (2012: HK$5,710,000), interest income
from certain subsidiaries of HK$28,119,000 (2012: HK$19,511,000) and
impairment on amounts due from certain subsidiaries of HK$10,500,000

(2012: HK$4,400,000).
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—E-=fF=A=+—8 31 March 2013
32. HARERE 32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RIREER - R AR TE TR B E 2 5 At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
NBEWT : in the financial statements were as follows:
EE VNN
Group Company
(GBEFT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012 2013 2012
R TE=FEEMRME  Guarantees given to financial
IR O TE(R institutions in connection with
RAHEE facilities granted to third parties,
at the maximum 79,072 105,886 - -
EREMBARAAEE  Facilities available to subsidiaries
M4 RITHER for which guarantees were
given to banks - - 581,619 527,065
79,072 105,886 581,619 527,065
RZE—=F=ZA=+—8 ' ARas As at 31 March 2013, the guarantees given by the Company to banks
BT BAREEMRHARITAHER in connection with facilities granted to subsidiaries were utilized to the
B A= ER4 A B 129,234,0007T extent of approximately HK$129,234,000 (2012: HK$138,809,000).

—ZE— 4 - #¥138,809,0007T ) ©

33. RERARH 33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) fEHBEHBAA (a) As lessor

AEERBLEEROTHEEST The Group leases certain parts of its properties (note 15 to the
B E (SRR MEL5) - B financial statements) under operating lease arrangements, with
FEZHESRENTF—FE2=F - leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years. The terms
EIER—MINE ST A S TR B of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
& WIREERTISRNE AR deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
e o the then prevailing market conditions.
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33. WEHENRH(E)

(a)

(b)

ERHBAGE)

RZE—=F=A=+—H &%
B AR 7% B EL A A RT S22 N AT
AN R 2 D RTEE
e

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(@) As lessor (continued)

At 31 March 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

TEE Group
CE#¥FT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
—FRN Within one year 3,473 4,490
F_FEFERF In the second to fifth years,
(BIEEEMT) inclusive - 3,060
3,473 7,550
EREBAA (b) As lessee

AEERBEEHOLFHEEET
MELRMRERE - MERPRE
REBHEHE 2 HEME D BN F
—FE\FRAF -

RZE—=F=RA=+—RH &%
BRI R BH S S T A B B

The Group leases certain of its properties and office equipment
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties and
office equipment are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 8
years and for a term of 5 years, respectively.

At 31 March 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

ZE DR RREINT follows:
KEE Group
GEMTFT) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
—FR Within one year 1,758 1,483
F_FEFRF In the second to fifth years,
(BiEERME) inclusive 698 442
2,456 1,925

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1
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33.

34.

RERNTHE)

() RZZE—=F=R=+—H &2
AU BEAMNLLEHNAE(ZF
——fF )

S

B T P M EE33 ()R R Y A8 i AR A0 7 HE
2O REER RS HAREE AR
T

RZB—=F=A=+—H"  BRXK
SERTEARERE Y THEREY
ERNERBEZIENAESROE
#102,986,0007( =& — = F : B
169,102,0007%) °

M-ZT—=6=A=1+—08 @RA%
ERPBEAEEE M BERR
# BEENBRBEZEREREGH
#75#5897,0000 ( ZF——F : B
2,028,0007T ) °

R-ZE—=F=A=+—08  &x281
BERNFE(ZZ—ZF &) o
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

33.

34.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(c) As at 31 March 2013, the Company had no significant operating
lease commitments (2012: Nil).

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 33(b)
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had capital commitments, which
were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the construction
of industrial buildings in Mainland China amounting to approximately
HK$102,986,000 (2012: HK$169,102,000).

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had capital commitments, which were
contracted but not provided for, in respect of the purchase of property,
plant and equipment in Mainland China amounting to approximately
HK$897,000 (2012: HK$2,028,000).

As at 31 March 2013, the Company had no significant commitments
(2012: Nil).
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3. BEAEIRS 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

FA - BRAMBIRE L TATEED
BRON  REBEBUTHBEATR
2 year:

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group also had the following related party transactions during the

(a) AREBLAER37 5790000 ( == (a) The Group purchased raw materials amounting to HK$37,579,000

——4% : B%40,881,0007T ) M—
Bia N OB SR E AR 2 A8
WEEEGRBEE R

o AEERA—FEAT - BR
BABRCRINERAR ( [EE
Y ) - LAMBEER7,137,0007T
—T— 4 : B%5363,0007T)
BEEME - FR KXHTHAA
SEZHFERERS -

BEELREBEEREE(MALS
ARBZEF)RRESAZHE
AN FRE SRR RESEES
L ZBHEBAN) AHAEFERE
AR AFPRRAE LB0% ZRE
- ANEREXEARAREESR
BHRARZRI - FrABRERIIR
RER/NEEZHERTR] - IALR
ZREAA R EEZEERRET R

(2012: HK$40,881,000) from an associate at prices and on terms
similar to those offered by unrelated suppliers of the Group.

In addition, the Group purchased raw materials of HK$7,137,000
(2012: HK$5,363,000) from a related company, Zhen Jian Mould
& Machinery (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“CC-SZ”). These transactions
were also continuing connected transactions of the Group during
the year.

Dr. Chen CHIANG and Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG, who are directors
of the Company, and their respective associates (which are also
associates of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a director of the Company)
together control the exercise of 80% of the voting power at general
meetings of Chen Chien Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds
the entire equity interest of CC-SZ. CC-SZ is therefore a related
company of the Group. The terms of the above transactions were
conducted with prices and terms mutually agreed by the Group
and the related company.

B EAR MAGRFETT -

(b) REEFEZEERABTH (b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

NEE Group

CEBTFT) (HK$°000) 2013 2012
pSEL==EEwl Short term employee benefits 11,997 19,194
ZEEREF Post-employment benefits 60 48

12,057 19,242
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36. £EMTESE 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RIREEIR - TRER ST A ZERE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
(ERUNNE as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
ERMEE Financial assets
BRRERKIE
Loans and receivables
REE Group
CEMTFT) (HK$’000) 2013 2012
JEWE 5 N ZIRER R Trade and bills receivables 833,561 721,349
AR ® - FENIE Financial assets included
K E A FE IR 3K in deposits, prepayments
& RE E and other receivables 24,896 44,922
BIRRITIFK Pledged bank deposits 80,280 83,018
e MIRTTHETE Cash and bank balances 786,126 815,554
1,724,863 1,664,843
cRas Financial liabilities
DB R AT EZ
=R
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
rEH Group
CEETFT) (HK$’000) 2013 2012
BB S REEER Trade and bills payables 411,363 392,561
SO A M FE T BRFX Financial liabilities included
MEFTBE in other payables and
NeRBE accruals 120,112 102,769
FHEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 231,625 213,045
763,100 708,375
146 mreEmERAR 2013 3§ CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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36. EWMITEDHE(E) 36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
SREE Financial assets
BRI ERRE
Loans and receivables
ARANF] Company
CEMTFoTr) (HK$'000) 2013 2012
JEU B A A BR Z FEE Amounts due from subsidiaries, net 1,206,362 1,262,137
NG M EAM Financial assets included
FEUTAR X in deposits and
HEeRIEE other receivables 780 730
Re RIRITEF Cash and bank balances 69,590 9,540
1,276,732 1,272,407
o=k Financial liabilities
DB EZ
tHas
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
b N Company
CEMTFT) (HK$’000) 2013 2012
FERTB B A AIBRER Amounts due to subsidiaries 516,470 512,091
AR AH AT ERIR Financial liabilities included
MEFTBE in other payables and
NerRBE accruals 1,676 2,746
FPEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 150,000 120,000
668,146 634,837
EHEEERAR 2013 FR CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013 147
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3V.EHEIHEE 37.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(a) IERALBEINCEZLMEE (a) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognized in their
entirety
RiEFEZ g+ ZiEiE Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments of the
PRC
TRERER - ZE—=F=A=+— The following table provide a summary of bills receivable that have
HUHPEHEESHEETHAK been transferred in such a way that part of the transferred financial
IEER T A EER RN E M E N assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated
HEABE - liabilities as at 31 March 2013:
NEH Group
(BT or) (HK$'000)

FEREREERAE  Carrying amount of

assets that continued

to be recognized 12,625

BRI B EREE Carrying amount of
associated liabilities (12,625)
RZE—=F=ZA=+—H " &% At 31 March 2013, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
ERHAETHERSECESTH accepted by certain local banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed Bills”)
B IRTES A TREKZE to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due
([BEZE]) - UEEREMIESH to such suppliers. Since the Group has retained the substantial
JERH RN B SR - AAERER risks and rewards, which include default risk relating to the
BaREAKLER  BEESEEE Endorsed Bills, it continued to recognize the full carrying amounts
REEA RS - Btk - HISERRE of the Endorsed Bills and the associated trade payables settled.
EERAMAREENMBEBCD & Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group does not retain any
EEMNESER - 2% KEF rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including sales, transfer or

HWREZEERWEEMES 8 pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties.

RREMEME=ZTHE @Rk
EREERE -
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—Z=-=—&#E=A=+—fH 31 March 2013

JV.EHEESRMEEE) 37. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(b) FERLERANCERSHEE

(b) Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in their

WREFEEELZREAZ

RZTE—=F=RA=+—H &%
BRmEETHERSEREER
7% #30,030,0007T E # & F
BEENRITEINE TRERE
(RIERABERE]) - UEEE
it FHERNBNE SRR - &
IHERBERBERHREHMARZHA
RAENER - RIBFEREL
fIRTT R - BRI ERE ERE
REANERAASEER([FES
B]) o NSRBI B R R LR
BER AR ER KO
| ERIERK I ERE
ERBHMMEREELERENE
SRR o NEEGIFES EKILFE
REEZRNBOZERILERE
EXBRNARBRBSRENTARE
BRRESNEREE - Bt - #F
B2ER ITERBERBENATE
WAEK e

FR - AEEREBERLERSE
S5 A B IR MR A W as s B
18 - WEKSIERNFARE
ERERESE  REEENESF

FEHIEL o

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1

entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments of the
PRC

At 31 March 2013, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC (the “Derecognized
Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the
trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount in
aggregate of HK$30,030,000. The Derecognized Endorsed Bills
have a maturity from five to six months at the end of the reporting
period. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). Since the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognized
Endorsed Bills, it has derecognized the full carrying amounts
of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills and the associated trade
payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognized Endorsed Bills and
the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognized
Endorsed Bills equal to their carrying amounts. Thus, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognized
Endorsed Bills are not significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognized any gain or loss on
the date of transfer of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills. No gains
or losses were recognized from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has been made
evenly throughout the year.
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38. eREREEAERBE 38.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

AEETESHMTABERE LRITHE
7 - ERRTER - BREZERER
R HRKER - BNESREER
A BAENERR - EETRELKLE R
RITER »

MAEESBIARELOEIERRA
FEER - SNERR - S EEBR RS
ESEB - AEEILEHEANFIER
% - BRRE SR T ENERLRER
SEBROBERNTX - EREERR
SRYEAR - AR RS Yt
TR B -

RSN

AKEFEHNT SR ESER TR
EAEENFERITESER - NEHE
ETERENERER  EBAERNX
RREF - & BEREUE AR KA B

LA
oo
2N

o

SRR

REEINERBBRAERL S - O
RNBEELEE  UERPEAERS
BRBHFIE ©

AEBBINEZRZRER - ZFRBRIFR
REERARD HE RRER S » ENA
X AR® - RERFeRRRFE

EEEETERNET AR% - BE
L BB RRHEENRH MRERTH
BIRREMEEZINERR  WERE -
SEBEHITERINERR ©
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POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and bank
balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, trade and bills payables, other payables, accruals and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group had insignificant interest rate risk. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a timely
and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating interest
rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely and
considers to take measures to reduce significant interest rate exposure,
if any.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities and net investments in operations in
Mainland China and Taiwan.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such risk
exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s sales and
purchases transactions denominated in United States dollars (“US$”),
Renminbi (“RMB”), Japanese yen (“JPY”) and New Taiwanese dollars
(“NTD").

Management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure intransactions
denominated in US$, RMB, JPY and NTD and its investments in
Mainland China and Taiwan and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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& HIR (T AT A B BUR K T 2 0 1
RTHET - ARE  BERFAN
5 ) TR AT B B O B (e 0I5
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2013

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in US$, RMB, JPY
and NTD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the

Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary

assets and liabilities) and the Group’s equity.

HNEFE R RRE AR A
#gmORd) B OGRS R
Increase/ Increase/ 30, (R4 )*
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign in profit (decrease)
(BB For) (HK$°000) currency rate (%) before tax in equity*
2013
WA REEETTHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 66,480 -
W ARBEE T E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (66,480) -
M AREHETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 4,384 -
M AREEETLEE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (4,384) -
fiss A BB LA If JPY strengthens against HK$ 5% (5,543) -
fi) B EI#B T B If JPY weakens against HK$ (5%) 5,543 -
w¥ & EEETTHE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (4,648) -
W3 a B ETE If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 4,648 -
2012
W ARBEETHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 64,724 -
A REEB TR (E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (64,724) -
MAREEETTHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% 5,730 -
WARBEETIE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) (5,730) -
fiy A B8 LA If JPY strengthens against HK$ 5% (6,344) -
fiw B BB Tz (B If JPY weakens against HK$ (5%) 6,344 -
W3 aBEHETHE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (2,840) -
mE e HETRE If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 2,840 -

* TEERE RN

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1

*

Excluding retained profits
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3. cRIEAMEEEERBE (&) 38.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

FERR

EERRZEFENRRZHHE T TREET
EEETHEEMSAEERMNRZTH
BARHOAIRENE -

FEWE Z AR E AR E IR B
BEEETE REE - 1IN REERE
HIR  AEESERSRMERNESER
HY R EI 7R - LAREGR 5L AT UR B 5RIR
EEH R IRERE - Bt - AEER
RERBRILTERX -

AEBEEMERMEE(BRRAS MRT
EENEERRIERE T OENT
0 ERARBRENZE TANKRE
1B - NEETAZ AR BRERTE
EREERR - BRFIECHNI M
7132 °

HRASER SRR MEEENEP
Ry > WEFERREHRER - KHEE
RBRER,/ ZSTETER - A%H
YA FEEREFEERR -

BAARERRIWE SRFFTEANEER
R EE— S EIEE R - BEHRIE®
RMIEE21 ©

REBE SR

AEBRARERRDESFTETR - A
EREESHRNAR - 2 TAZEE
TRTEM : BNESREERERF K
TREEM  BEESREBRFON
FMERBRARERSRE -
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POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty of a
transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfill its obligation and the Group
thereby suffers a financial loss.

The credit limits of trade receivables are determined and monitored
by management on an ongoing basis. In addition, at the end of each
reporting period, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for unrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the Group’s exposure to
impairment is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, arises from default of the counterparty with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.
The Group is also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognized and creditworthy parties,
there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk
are managed by customer/counterparty. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21 to the
financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments (e.g., trade and bills payables) and financial
assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2013

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities (including
contingent liabilities) as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

2013

=@EAULER

=@EAR +TZ=EAR
HIZER  More than 3
Less than 3 months and

AEEH Group months or less than 12 st
(GE®Fr) (HK$°000) on demand months Total
BN E 5 REBRER Trade and bills payables 340,186 71,177 411,363
O AE M AR F R Financial liabilities included in
EETaENSREaE other payables and accruals 120,112 - 120,112
STEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 231,625 - 231,625
MAETE=FEZEM Guarantees given to financial
R4 I SRR institutions in connection with facilities
R REER granted to third parties, at the maximum 79,072 - 79,072
770,995 71,177 842,172
2012
=@EAULER
=EAR +T=EAR
HIZEER More than 3
Less than 3 months and
REE Group months or less than 12 st
(GEMTr) (HK$'000) on demand months Total
FEHE 5 M EIRERR Trade and bills payables 364,632 27,929 392,561
AR ERA R Financial liabilities included in
ErtAaENsmasE other payables and accruals 102,769 - 102,769
FTEIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 213,045 - 213,045
ML TE=ZEHREE Guarantees given to financial
R4S B ISR Y institutions in connection with facilities
R REEE granted to third parties, at the maximum 105,886 - 105,886
786,332 27,929 814,261

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1R
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Notes to Financial Statements
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38.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

REBESER(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
=EAARRIRER
Less than 3 months
b /N Company or on demand
CEMTFT) (HK$°000) 2013 2012
JEAH I B~ A BR TR Amounts due to subsidiaries 516,470 512,091
A0 A B Ath B 5T BR R I Financial liabilities included in
ErtAENsREaE other payables and accruals 1,676 2,746
STRIRITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 150,000 120,000
Jﬂgﬁﬁg RIATAEE Facilities available to subsidiaries for
MR AR IRITAIELR which guarantees were given to banks 581,619 527,065
1,249,765 1,161,902

EXREE

AEEEANEENTIERIEREERE
B ELENE N RRFRENE AL
o PXFHEEEREAREREK
RAaS ©

REERBCOERROE T M ER R
BHENRERE - BIRIFUFABRELRE
% AEENERAERTRROKE
FARRIR BB AN THAR - HEZZ
—=F=A=+—RAKk=ZE—=-F=A
=T—HIEFEAR  ZEFERER A
12 BURSIE P I B 2R -

AN - REB TEBFREEEMMR
(BNERBEERARBEE) EEE
$ ° K%Zﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ/@%@)ﬁ%

oA o
39. M mREL
HHBRERER_E—=F A=+t
REERREL -
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39.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2013
and 31 March 2012.

In addition, the Group monitors capital using the position of net current
assets, which is total current assets minus total current liabilities. The

Group’s policy is to maintain a positive balance of the net current
assets.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by
the board of directors on 27 June 2013.
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Principal Subsidiaries
As at 31 March 2013

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

ERAEEE
RRAL S 28T EZED
kg E BRATEE Percentage
Place of BWER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
AT EB registration issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE
Held indirectly
BN BRAE @ =0 iR 100 SHE T B
Asian Plastic Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Sale of
Company, Limited @ ¥4 #50,000,0007T plastic injection
NT$50,000,000 moulding machines
BHEKERAREE hE, 2,100,000%7C 100 BBENHERTIREA
CRINABBR AT ® R B K e US$2,100,000 Manufacture and sale
Chen Hsong CAD CAM PRC/ of precision moulds
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. @ Mainland China
EHEMGEEREERAR] B iR 100 R R EERS
Chen Hsong Finance and Hong Kong Ordinary Provision of financial
Management Services Limited BT and management
HK$2 services
BHETERCRY)ARAR © HE 4,000,000 7T 100 SEELES
Chen Hsong Industrial Park ESlETpN 173 US$4,000,000 Property holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. @ PRC/

RIEEEBMRLT 2013 F1R
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2013

P YN 2]
FRALFEf 28T EmEIE
k&&= BATEE, Percentage
Place of BWER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
NEERE registration issued share/ to the FTEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERFE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
EEMRFERR AT S LB E2T 100 RERBERS
Chen Hsong Logistics Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Provision of
Company Limited BICRERERG, @ - logistics services
75 %5,000,0007T
Non-voting deferred ©
HK$5,000,000
EHMEEMmAR AR BB TimE BT 100 THE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Sale of
Company, Limited EINERERERSD @ - plastic injection
78 #50,000,0007T moulding machines
Non-voting deferred ©
HK$50,000,000
EERERECRIDBRAT 0@ hEl 78 #24,000,0007T 100 B8 I S & ST
Chen Hsong Mechanical and ey N7 HK$24,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Electrical Equipment PRC/ of tie bars
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. @@ Mainland China
B (R BRAR 0@ sl 8,010,000% 7T 100 BUE R E T
Chen Hsong Machinery ESEipN 173 US$8,010,000 Manufacture and sale
(Ningbo) Company, PRC/ of plastic injection

Limited @@
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2013

PAUNEIES Y]
RV s 5 56) EEADL
RiREHE BRATEE, Percentage
Place of BWER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
NGIECE registration issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERFE(E)
Held indirectly (continued)
BEEMORYDARART 0@ Bl 17,130,000 7T 100 BUENIHE T IBH
Chen Hsong Machinery ey N7E US$17,130,000 Manufacture and sale
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ of plastic injection
Limited (@ Mainland China moulding machines
EHEHER D BRAR @ =3 =Rl 100 FUE R IHE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Manufacture and sale
Taiwan Company, Limited @ ¥4 1165,000,0007T of plastic injection
NT$165,000,000 moulding machines
EEETEABRAF i Ak 100 HERTEA
Chen Hsong Precision Mould Hong Kong Ordinary Sale of
Company Limited 7BH4,410,0007T precision moulds
HK$4,410,000
BEZHORIDERART 0@ e ##510,000,0007T 100 SHE T
Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing AR 3K B HK$10,000,000 Sale of
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ plastic injection
Limited @@ Mainland China moulding machines
EHERHRAR AT HE Tk 100 SHE T B
Chen Hsong Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Sale of
TEME2TT plastic injection
HK$2 moulding machines
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2013

PN 2]
AL FEf 28T EEEIE
k&= BATEE, Percentage
Place of BWER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
NEERE registration issued share/ to the FTEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BERE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
2 B RE, 604,100% 7T 100 SUERHE TP
EEBREMARAR @® R B A e US$604,100 Manufacture and sale
Chen Ning Plastics Machinery PRC/ of plastic injection
Company, Limited @@ Mainland China moulding machines
FRLTIREE B R RE, 5,200,000% 7T 100 FUE R IHE T B
W ER AR W@ AP B K e US$5,200,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection
Plastics Machinery Mainland China moulding machines
Company Limited V@
FILTIREEEEmE =8k RE, 2,100,000%7T 100 FHE R IHE T B
W ER AR W@ AP B K e US$2,100,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De No. 3 PRC/ of plastic injection
Plastics Machinery Mainland China moulding machines
Company, Limited @
B 1L T B B S R A Bl 7,900,000 7T 100 FHE R IHE T B
ERAF W@ AP B K US$7,900,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De PRC/ of plastic injection

Precision Machinery
Company, Limited @
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Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2013

PN R
3L FEf 28T EHZEI
RiREE RAEE Percentage
Place of BWER of equity
incorporation/ Nominal value of attributable
NEERE registration issued share/ to the FTEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
MEEE(E)
Held indirectly (continued)
R IL T IB/E [ 2R EE FES 3,000,000 7T 100 BUERIBERBESRE
BRAR ©@ ESETpN 173 US$3,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Intra-Italy Hydraulics PRC/ of hydraulic motors
(Foshan Shunde) Mainland China
Company, Limited @@
A BIERERERR AT @@ e 12,000,000% 7T 100 BUE N IHE S
Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision ey N7 US$12,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Equipment Limited @@ PRC/ of casting parts
Mainland China
Pt - Notes:
(1) HERRBINGEEDRSE - (1) These companies are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.
(2) WERRA/PINGELEDE - (2) These companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures.
(3) EREHELAR MDA SR BRI S (3) The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no rights to

BERERRAE EREREZRGIENRE
BEWIEEENL 2B

vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any surplus in a return of
capital in a winding-up.

(4) HEXARBBEHET - (4) English company names are translated for identification purpose only.
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hEMBHE

AT RfEsga AEEeEn@AYRERED
REREEZ B BHREROEE  BE
BERIFEREL -

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling

interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from

the published audited financial statements, is set out below.

£ RESULTS
HE=—A=1+—HIFFZE Year ended 31 March
(EB®For) (HK$'000) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Wz Revenue 1,793,552 1,838,394 2,423,528 1,806,334 1,603,107
SRR Profit from operating activities 123,014 205,587 417,340 204,415 107,134
& R AN Finance costs (5,610) (4,607) (2,091) (1,856) (4,668)
FE(EH =~ A Share of profits less losses

AR EE of associates 3,731 752 6,325 6,137 1,386
FR A% AR A Profit before tax 121,135 201,732 421,574 208,696 103,852
TSz Income tax expense (16,325) (41,928) (75,101) (54,778) (16,700)
NEF Profit for the year 104,810 159,804 346,473 153,918 87,152
SER Attributable to:
AArEZFEA A Equity holders of the Company 103,933 160,334 343,263 153,500 85,786
FEERR = Non-controlling interests 877 (530) 3,210 418 1,366

104,810 159,804 346,473 153,918 87,152

BE  BERFERER

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

R=F=+—H As at 31 March

CE¥FT) (HK$°000) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

BEMAE Total assets 3,804,862 3,762,347 3,832,536 3,493,038 2,885,343

BERE Total liabilities (924,048) (927,001) (1,056,008) (1,014,828) (533,189)

JEIE S Non-controlling interests (19,326) (18,380) (18,198) (14,144) (13,683)
2,861,488 2,816,966 2,758,330 2,464,066 2,338,471
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EEEEBRRAST
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited

BEEMANEAE TRIMAREH13E1550
13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

EEE / Tel: (852) 2665 3222

{BE / Fax: (852) 2664 8202

4331t / Website: www.chenhsong.com.hk
EH / E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com.hk
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